
 

- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

MONDAY 18TH NOVEMBER 2013 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors P. Lammas (Chairman), R. J. Laight (Vice-Chairman), 
C. J. Bloore, B. T. Cooper, R. L. Dent, K. A. Grant-Pearce, 
J. M. L. A. Griffiths, H. J. Jones, L. C. R. Mallett, S. P. Shannon, 
C. J. Spencer, C. J. Tidmarsh and L. J. Turner 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 14th October 2013 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Update on North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership (Pages 5 - 
54) 
 

5. Quarters 1 and 2 Summary of Environmental Enforcement Action Report 
(Pages 55 - 56) 
 

6. Planning Policy Task Group 12 Month Review of Recommendations (Pages 
57 - 66) 
 

7. Cabinet Response to the Air Quality Task Group Report (Pages 67 - 72) 
 

8. Scrutiny Topic Proposal - Ground Maintenance Work Carried out for BDHT 
(Pages 73 - 76) 
 

9. Joint WRS Scrutiny Task Group Update (Pages 77 - 78) 
 



 

- 2 - 

10. Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) - Verbal 
Update  
 

11. Action List (Pages 79 - 82) 
 

12. Cabinet Work Programme (Pages 83 - 88) 
 

13. Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme (Pages 89 - 92) 
 

14. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 

 K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
7th November 2013 
 



 

- 3 - 

 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

� You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board 
meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business 
would disclose confidential or “exempt” information. 

� You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

� You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

� You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

� An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

� A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

� You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

� Meeting Agendas 
� Meeting Minutes 
� The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 

 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

MONDAY, 14TH OCTOBER 2013 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors P. Lammas (Chairman), R. J. Laight (Vice-Chairman), 
C. J. Bloore, B. T. Cooper, R. L. Dent, K. A. Grant-Pearce, 
J. M. L. A. Griffiths, H. J. Jones, L. C. R. Mallett, C. J. Spencer, 
C. J. Tidmarsh and L. J. Turner 
 

 Observers: Councillor M. A. Sherrey and Councillor C. B. Taylor 
 

 Officers: Ms. J. Pickering and Ms. A. Scarce 
 

 
 

34/13 APOLOGIES  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor S. P. Shannon. 
 

35/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest nor whipping arrangements. 
 

36/13 MINUTES  
 
The Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board meeting held on 16th 
September 2013 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

37/13 CABINET RESPONSE TO THE YOUTH PROVISION TASK GROUP 

REPORT  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Health and Well-being thanked Members for the 
comprehensive Youth Provision Task Group Report and confirmed that the 
recommendations had been agreed by Cabinet.  However, clarification had 
been requested on a number of recommendations.  Officers provided the 
following response: 
 
Recommendation 3 – it was confirmed that the £15,000 funding was provided 
by Sandwell Leisure Trust and Worcestershire County Council had informed 
the Task Group Members that on completion of a written specification, 
providers would be asked to tender for the work.  The Task Group had been 
concerned at the delay which had occurred in this process and that it would 
not be completed in time for activities to be provided over the summer break. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
14th October 2013 

 

Recommendations 7, 8, and 9 – Officers had spoken to the Communications 
Manager who had confirmed that there would be no cost implications in 
respect of these recommendations. 
 
It was noted that in respect of recommendation 1 the Leader had indicated 
that he was in discussions with the Leader of Worcestershire County Council 
in order to understand the extent of potential cuts to Positive Activities. 
Unfortunately the Portfolio Holder was not able to provide any information on 
the outcome of those discussions. 
 
RESOLVED that the recommendations be included within the quarterly 
recommendation tracker and the Youth Provision Task Group Report be 
reviewed in 12 months time. 
 

38/13 WRS JOINT SCRUTINY EXERCISE  
 
The Vice Chairman informed Members that the second meeting of this joint 
scrutiny, which was hosted by the Council, had taken place on 10th October 
2013.   The Task Group had reviewed the content of the original business 
case for Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) and one of the 
newsletters which were published on a quarterly basis. 
 
Members had also provided some initial feedback on behalf of colleagues at 
participating local authorities about Members’ experiences of working with 
WRS.  A deadline of 31st October 2013 was agreed for receipt of feedback 
from elected Members across the county.  It was important that, as the host 
authority, the Council provided feedback and the Vice Chairman encouraged 
Members to contact him or the supporting officers with any positive and 
negative comments they might have. The parish councils had also been asked 
to provide feedback.  The Task Group hoped to complete its investigations by 
April 2014.  It was also confirmed that the scope of the investigation would 
cover value for money. 
 
The next meeting of the Task Group would take place on 22nd October 2013 
and would include an interview with the Head of Regulatory Services. 
 

39/13 WORCESTERSHIRE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD  
 
The Chairman invited Councillor B. T. Cooper, as the Council’s representative 
on the HOSC, to provide an update on its most recent meeting. 
 
Members were informed that there had been 2 main agenda items at the 
meeting held on 8th October, the first being the Well Connected Programme, 
which had integrated the care services within Worcestershire, this included the 
commissioning groups, district and county councils roles and local health 
groups.  It was noted that as this was at its early stages the benefits and 
outcomes would be available in due course. 
 
The other item considered was the Joint Service Review which NHS England 
had now become involved in as an independent group and was it reviewing 
the two remaining options.  It was hoped that a response would be available 

Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
14th October 2013 

 

by December, however the previous timelines had slipped and HOSC had 
also highlighted that it was keen to see that the consultation with the public 
was carried out in a more efficient and timely manner than previously. 
 
Members also discussed the debt within the Worcestershire Acute Health 
Service group and how this was historical and that it was understood that this 
had not worsened. 
 

40/13 PLANNING POLICY TASK GROUP REPORT - 12 MONTH REVIEW OF 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
In the absence of the Head of Planning and Regeneration it was  
 
RESOLVED that the item be deferred until the meeting to be held on 16th 
December 2013. 
 

41/13 ACTION LIST  
 
The Board was informed that several actions had been completed and would 
be removed from the list.  Items in respect of the Finance Monitoring Report 
and Sickness Absence Performance and Health Report would be included 
within the next reports received by the Board. 
 
The Executive Director, Finance and Resources, referred Members to an 
outstanding item from the March meeting and suggested that it would be 
helpful for all Members to receive a briefing from the Benefits Manager on the 
Hardship Fund and the Universal Credit scheme. 
 
RESOLVED that Democratic Services Officers arrange a briefing for all 
Members in respect of the Hardship Fund and Universal Credit Scheme as 
soon as possible. 
 

42/13 CABINET WORK PROGRAMME 1ST NOVEMBER 2013 - 28TH FEBRUARY 

2014  
 
The Board considered the Cabinet Work Programme for 1st November to 28th 
February 2014.  Officers reminded Members that they were due to consider 
the Car Parking Review item at the November meeting and had requested a 
summary of the Playing Pitch Strategy which had been scheduled for the 
December meeting of the Board. 
 
Officers confirmed that the Dodford, Hagley and Beoley Conservation Area 
Appraisals and Management plans were technical documents produced by a 
Conservation Officer in line with English Heritage Guidelines.  Similar 
documents had been produced in for Bromsgrove Town and St John’s in 
2011. 
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet Work Programme be noted. 

Page 3



Overview and Scrutiny Board 
14th October 2013 

 

 
43/13 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Board considered the Work Programme and discussed the number of 
reports which were scheduled for the November meeting.  There had been a 
delay with producing the Quarter 1 Write Off Report and Sickness Absence 
Report and it was agreed that these would be combined with the 2nd Quarter 
reports to be received at the December meeting. 
 
The Chairman gave Members the opportunity to suggest topics which it was 
felt may be suitable for consideration by the Board at future meetings.  It was 
suggested that an update on the preventative work carried out in respect of 
flooding in the District would be pertinent in view of the approach of the winter 
months. 
 
Members also discussed the recent staff survey and requested that the results 
of this would be an appropriate subject for the Board to consider.  After further 
discussion it was 
 
RESOLVED: 

 

(a) that officers arrange a presentation providing an update on preventative 
flooding work within the District from the relevant officer, to be received at 
the meeting to be held on 16th December 2013; and 

(b) that the Board receive a presentation on the results and findings of the 
staff survey as soon as practicable. 

 
The meeting closed at 6.35 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



Elected Member 

BRIEFING NOTE         
 

To:  Overview and Scrutiny   From:   Bev Houghton 
  Committee    Dept:  Community Safety 
       Contact Info: 01527 881472 
   
CC:  Cllr Margaret Sherrey – Portfolio Holder for Community Safety 

Sue Hanley – Chair of North Worcestershire CSP & Deputy Chief Executive 
  Judith Willis – (Acting) Head of Community Services 
 

SUBJECT North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 

DATE 18th November 2013 

PURPOSE To provide an update on the progress of North Worcestershire 
Community Safety Partnership. 

BACKGROUND  

In November 2011 following a full options appraisal and formal agreement by the relevant 
Responsible Authorities, the three district CSPs in Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre 
Forest agreed to merge to create a single North Worcestershire CSP.  Following 
development of Terms of Reference for the new CSP and preparation of a formal 
application to merge, the North Worcestershire CSP operated in shadow form whilst 
awaiting formal Home Office approval of the new structure. 
 
After the elections of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC) in November 2012, 
statutory responsibility for overseeing the merger of the CSP’s fell to the Office of the 
West Mercia PCC.  On 24th May 2013 the North Worcestershire CSP Combination 
Agreement, which formally endorsed the North Worcestershire merger was signed by all 
Community Safety Responsible Authorities and Bill Longmore, West Mercia PCC.  It is 
believed to be the first Combination Agreement in the country to be formally agreed and 
endorsed by a PCC.      

CURRENT POSITION 

Initially in shadow arrangements, North Worcestershire CSP has been operation since 
July 2012.  Its new Terms of Reference were formally adopted in September 2012 
outlining Membership and operating procedures. (Appendix 1)  
 
Since September 2012, a number of changes identified in the Term of Reference have 
now taken place.  
 
As of the 22nd November 2012 and following the election of the West Mercia PCC, the 
former Responsible Authority member, West Mercia Police Authority ceased to exist.  
Whilst the PCC is not a statutory Responsible Authority in CSP, the Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011 does place a duty on CSPs and the PCC to work together 
to develop local Crime and Disorder Strategies. 
 
As of the 31st March, Primary Care Trusts (PCT) also ceased to exist.  Redditch and 
Bromsgrove Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and Wyre Forest CCG replaced 
Worcestershire PCT as a Responsible Authority member of the CSP.  
     

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



District Operational Groups are now referred to as Safer District Groups and are identified 
as Safer Bromsgrove Group, Safer Redditch Group and Safer Wyre Forest Group. North 
Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership and the Redditch & Bromsgrove Safeguarding 
Adults Group continue to operate as sub-groups of the CSP and Wyre Forest has now 
established a district Safeguarding Adults Group based on the Redditch & Bromsgrove 
model.       

NORTH WORCESTERSHIRE CSP PLAN   

The CSP still has a requirement to produce a three year rolling plan outlining how the 
Partnership is going to address key crime and community safety priorities, as identified in 
its annual Strategic Assessment.  
 
North Worcestershire CSP released its Community Safety Partnership Plan for 2013-16 in 
August of this year (Appendix 2).  This was following discussions with the Office of the 
PCC and the Worcestershire Safer Communities Board to ensure strategic links with the 
West Mercia Police and Crime Plan (2013-17) and the Worcestershire Community Safety 
Agreement (2013-14). 
 
The North Worcestershire CSP priorities are:  
 

§ To maintain low crime levels and improve public confidence  
§ Reducing the impact of alcohol and drugs misuse on communities  
§ Reducing Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Vulnerable People  
§ Reducing re-offending  
§ Reducing Anti Social Behaviour  

 
Within the Partnership Plan there is an outline of key objectives, actions and measures for 
each priority and these will form the basis of the performance management of the CSP 
over the lifetime of the plan.   

CSP FUNDING 2013/14  

Prior to the merger, each district CSP delegated responsibility for its existing budgets to 
its respective district operational group.  This ensured that any funding allocated to 
individual districts remained solely for the benefit of the local area it had been allocated 
to.   
 
Following the November 2012 elections, all Community Safety funding streams previously 
distributed by a district or county basis became the responsibility of the PCC to allocate. 
The West Mercia PCC released his first round of Community Safety Funding in January 
2013 and North Worcestershire CSPs applications for funding were agreed at the same 
amounts as previous year’s funding as follows:- 
 
Initiative  Amount  
North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership  £3,000  
Community Engagement, Consultation and Communications  £5,000  
North Worcestershire Home Security Projects  £6,000  
North Worcestershire CSP Analyst  £30,000  
Safer Bromsgrove Group*  £25,994  
Safer Redditch Group*  £39,810  
Safer Wyre Forest Group*  £40,653  
Total  £150,457  

 
*District specific funding amounts allocated using the same needs-based formula employed in previous years. 

Page 6



 
In September 2013, the PCC opened his second year of Community Safety Funding for 
2014/15 to allow for early applications.  North Worcestershire CSP are currently drafting 
funding bids up to same amounts as last year to support both North Worcestershire wide 
and district specific projects and initiatives.    

LOCAL DELIVERY – SAFER BROMSGROVE GROUP   

Local delivery of Community Safety projects and initiatives falls under the remit of the 
Community Safety Operational groups. In Bromsgrove, the Safer Bromsgrove Group 
meets on a monthly basis to monitor district performance and review local operational 
delivery against the actions outlined in the Community Safety Partnership Plan.  This 
group is the first point of contact for any local crime and community safety issues or 
concerns that may require a multi-agency response.   
 
Current Safer Bromsgrove projects and initiatives include:- 
 

Home Security Assessments  Provision home security assessment and support to residents whose 
homes may be targeted due to their personal circumstances and 
vulnerabilities in their security. 

Home Security Market Stall  Set up and deliver a monthly Home Security advice stand at 
Bromsgrove Market to provide residents with access to home security 
advice and home security products 

Forensic Property Marking 
(SmartWater) Scheme  

Distribution of reduced cost SmartWater kits to members of the 
public, residents associations and community groups  

ASB Support and Target 
Hardening  

Provision of practical support and security improvements to identified 
victims of ASB and harassment    

Town Centre Regeneration 
Design Advice   

Support the Town Centre Regeneration programme through the 
provision of crime prevention design advice 

Planning Consultation 
 

Officers trained to national policing standards provide crime 
prevention/community safety feedback on planning applications 

National Campaigns and 
Awareness raising  

Provide local campaigns and seasonal initiatives supporting national 
campaigns such as White Ribbon Campaign, Teenage Domestic 
Abuse and National Responsible Drinking Christmas Campaigns   

 
Local projects delivered by the NW Hate Incident Partnership include:-  
 

Schools ‘Respect’ 
Programme  

Delivers community safety workshops and education sessions on 
Hate Crime and a variety of other community safety subjects in local 
Middle and High Schools 

Hate Incident Reporting 
Scheme  

Provides opportunities for victims, witnesses and third parties to 
report hate incidents on-line, by telephone or at a number of 
community reporting centres across the district. 

Hate Crime Awareness film 
and training package  

The Hate Incident Partnership has produced a training film and is 
developing an accompanying manual to increase awareness of hate 
crime and its effects on individuals and communities. 

 

 

COMMUNITY REPRESENTATION AND SCRUTINY 

Local representation on the North Worcestershire CSP is fulfilled through three positions.  
Bromsgrove District Council’s Elected Member representative is the Portfolio Holder for 
Community Safety, Cllr Margaret Sherrey. The Council’s Responsible Authority 
representative and also Chair of the CSP is Sue Hanley, Deputy Chief Executive and the 
Safer Bromsgrove Group is represented by its Chair, Bev Houghton, Community Safety 
Manager. Parish Councils are also represented on the CSP by the County Association of 
Local Councils (CALC). 
 

Page 7



Scrutiny arrangements for the CSP remain unchanged with local authorities having a 
statutory duty to scrutinise the work of its local CSP under Section 19 of the Police and 
Justice Act 2006.  This remit is fulfilled by the District Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Alongside the relationship the Council has with CSP, there is also a direct role in holding 
the Police and Crime Commissioner to account through the established West Mercia 
Police and Crime Panel.  Bromsgrove District Council’s representative on the panel is 
Council Leader, Cllr Roger Hollingsworth and more information about the work of the 
panel can be found on Worcestershire County Council’s website at 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/committees-and-panels/holder/police-and-crime-
panel.aspx  

FURTHER INFORMATION 

For further information on the North Worcestershire CSP, the Safer Bromsgrove Group or 
any associated projects or initiatives please contact:- 
 
Bev Houghton, Community Safety Manager  - 01527 881472 
bev.houghton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
 
Chris Santoriello Smith, Senior Community Safety Project Officer – 01527 881472 
c.santoriello-smith@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
 

AUTHOR Bev Houghton 
Community Safety Manager   
01527 881472 

APPENDICES 1) North Worcestershire CSP Terms of Reference 
2) North Worcestershire CSP Partnership Plan (2013-16) 

 

Page 8



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 1 

North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND OPERATING PROTOCOLS 
 

JULY 2012 

 
 
CONTENTS PAGE NO 
  
1. Name and Geographical Area 2 
  
2. Requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998) and Subsequent 

Amendments 
2 

  
3. Purpose of the North Worcestershire CSP 2 
  
4. Aims of the North Worcestershire CSP 3 
  
5. Structure of the North Worcestershire CSP 4 
  
6. Review of the Terms of Reference 4 
  
7. Financial Procedures and Protocols 4 
  
8. Operation of the North Worcestershire CSP 5 
  
9. Community Safety Operational Groups 8 
  
10. Performance Management 9 
  
11. Communications  9 
  
APPENDIX 1 - Map of the Geographical Area covered by the North 
Worcestershire CSP 

11 

  
APPENDIX 2 - North Worcestershire CSP Structure Chart 12 
  
APPENDIX 3 - North Worcestershire CSP Draft Communications 
Strategy and Operating Protocols  
 
 

13 

 

Page 9



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 2 

 

North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 
 

Terms of Reference and Operating Protocols 
 

July 2012 
 
 

    1. Name and Geographical Area 

 
The name of the merged Community Safety Partnership (CSP) for Bromsgrove District, 
Redditch Borough and Wyre Forest District is the North Worcestershire Community 
Safety Partnership, established in July 2012 to meet the requirements of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 as amended.   
 
The North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership (CSP) covers the whole area 
within Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest Councils’ administrative boundaries. (Map 
shown at Appendix 1). 
 

 

2. Requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998) and Subsequent Amendments 

 
The Crime and Disorder Act (1998), amended by the Police Reform Act (2002), makes it 
clear that the duty to carry out audits and develop strategies to reduce reoffending, tackle 
crime and disorder, anti social behaviour, alcohol and substance misuse and any other 
behaviour which has a negative effect on the local environment rests with Responsible 
Authorities (RA). These responsible authorities include: 
 
§ In multi-tier authority areas the District Council and County Council 
§ Police 
§ Police Authority (until 22 November 2012) 
§ Health (Primary Care Trusts until 31 March 2013 and Clinical Commissioning Groups 

after this) 
§ Probation 
 
Other agencies and organisations form the North Worcestershire CSP as either Co-
operating Bodies (CB) or Invitees to Participate (IP) as defined by Section 5 (2) and 
Section 5 (3) of the Act respectively.  
 

 

   3. Purpose of the North Worcestershire CSP 

 
To provide a strategic and co-operative approach between agencies and communities 
within North Worcestershire to address local community safety issues and achieves the 
Partnership’s vision of ‘Keeping North Worcestershire a safe place to live, work and visit.’  
 
This vision is underpinned by the following: 
 
§ To address the wider causes of crime and fear of crime. 
 
§ To encourage community cohesion. 

Page 10



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 3 

 
§ To reduce alcohol related harm. 
 
§ To identify opportunities to reduce substance misuse and re-offending. 
 

§ To promote a community where domestic abuse and the fear of domestic abuse is not 
tolerated. 

 

§ To promote a community where hate crime is unacceptable and those victims of hate 
crime are supported. 

 

§ To provide effective, strategic leadership generating effective partnership working. 
 

§ To deliver measurable outcomes. 
 

    4. Aims of the North Worcestershire CSP 

 
The aims of the North Worcestershire CSP are: 
 
§ To fulfil the obligations set out in the Crime and Disorder (1998) and subsequent 

legislative changes. 
 

§ To promote integration of Community Safety Plans into mainstream policies and 
services.  

 

§ To agree specific targets for improving Community Safety. 
 

§ To review achievements against targets and take appropriate action. 
 

§ To consider the annual assessment of Crime and Disorder trends and its impact on 
Community Safety strategy. 

 

§ To promote effective co-ordination of Community Safety activities. 
 

§ To promote information sharing and best practice in Community Safety. 
 

§ To promote the work of the CSP and its projects in the media and community as 
appropriate. 

 

§ To identify and explore opportunities to attract funding. 
 

§  To lead or support bids for funding. 
 

§ To promote continuing consultation on Community Safety. 
 

Page 11



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 4 

 

   5. Structure of the North Worcestershire 

  
Community Safety in Worcestershire is structured in three tiers, each with its own remit and 
responsibilities but interrelated in achieving goals. The North Worcestershire CSP is 
managed strategically by the Worcestershire Safer Communities Board (SCB). Appendix 2 
provides a structure chart showing the partnership links and responsibilities. 
 
The three tiers are: 
 
1. The Safer Communities Board: provides strategic level leadership and co-ordination of 

cross cutting community safety activity in Worcestershire. 
 

2. The North Worcestershire CSP:  
 

§ Monitors and evaluates the implementation of the Partnership Plan for the districts of 
Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest. 

 
§ Submits bids for external funding to support delivery of the Partnership Plan.  
 

§ Links the work of the CSP to other bodies whenever required. 
 

§ Identifies support required by the CSP to progress the delivery of the Partnership 
Plan. 

 

3. a) Community Safety Operational Groups in Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest 
report directly to the North Worcestershire CSP and are responsible for delivering the 
actions and outcomes identified by the North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership Plan. Project Leaders can be appointed by its Chair to head up individual 
projects as required. 
 

b) The North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership (NWHIP) and the 
Safeguarding Adults Groups are responsible for delivering activities that affect the 
most vulnerable people in our communities. These groups will feed into the local 
Community Safety Operational Groups.    

 
 

6. Review of Terms of Reference 

 
The North Worcestershire CSP will regularly monitor and review its Terms of Reference 
in the light of changing circumstances. In any event, the Terms of Reference will be 
reviewed formally every two years.  
 
 

7. Financial Procedures and Protocols 

 
§ It shall be the duty of the Chairs of the local Community Safety Operational Groups in 

partnership with the Community Safety Manager or equivalent to regulate and control 
any finances allocated to the respective district areas prior to the establishment of the 
North Worcestershire CSP. 
 

Page 12



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 5 

§ Any community safety grant awarded following its formal adoption will be allocated by 
the North Worcestershire CSP. 
 

§ Redditch Borough Council and Wyre Forest District Council will act as custodians of 
North Worcestershire CSP funds which under the Local Government Finance Act and 
Accounts and Audit regulations will be incorporated into their accounts. 

 
§ The Local Authority Community Safety Manager or equivalent shall be responsible for 

supervising the financial arrangements and reporting on all financial matters. 
 

§ All bids and claims for external funding will be approved by the North Worcestershire 
CSP. 

 

§ North Worcestershire CSP will seek to pro-actively commission projects and will 
establish a methodology for receiving and evaluating funding bids.   

 

8. Operation of the North Worcestershire CSP 

 
Key Responsibilities 
 
§ Compliance with statutory requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998), 

subsequent legislative amendments to the act and any other applicable legislation. 
 

§ To ensure close and effective working relationships with the Worcestershire Drug and 
Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) and the South Worcestershire CSP are maintained and 
enhanced. 

 

§ To be responsible for the development of the Partnership Plan and ensure that 
sufficient resources are allocated and aligned for delivery of its outcomes.  

 

Criteria for Membership 
 
Organisations should: 
 
§ Be a ‘responsible authority’ (RA) a ‘co-operating body’ (CB) or an ‘invitee to 

participate’ (IP) as defined by the Crime and Disorder Act (1998) or subsequent 
legislative amendments or have a strategic responsibility for community safety related 
issues. 
 

The representative from an organisation should be able to: 
§ Commit human and financial resources and be able to effect organisational change to 

address blockages, problems and barriers to effective delivery. It is therefore 
recommended that the level of representation should be at Chief/Senior Officer level.  

 

 

Page 13



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 6 

 

Membership of the North Worcestershire CSP 

 The following organisations are members of the North Worcestershire CSP: 
 

- Bromsgrove District Council (RA) 
- Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service (RA) 
- Redditch Borough Council (RA) 
- West Mercia Police (RA) 
- West Mercia Police Authority (RA) (until 22 November 2012) 
- West Mercia Probation Trust (RA) 
- Worcestershire County Council (RA) 
- Worcestershire Primary Care Trust (RA) (Until 31 March 2013 and Clinical 

Commissioning Groups after this) 
- Wyre Forest District Council (RA) 
- Bromsgrove and Redditch Magistrates Bench Chair (IP) 
- Chairperson of the Community Safety Operational Group for Bromsgrove (IP) 
- Chairperson of the Community Safety Operational Group for Redditch (IP) 
- Chairperson of the Community Safety Operational Group for Wyre Forest (IP) 
- Chairperson of the North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership (IP) 
- Herefordshire and Worcestershire Youth Offending Service (IP) 
- HMP Hewell (IP) 
- Kidderminster Magistrates Bench Chair (IP) 
- Portfolio Holder for Community Safety for Bromsgrove District Council (IP) 
- Portfolio Holder for Community Safety for Redditch Borough Council (IP) 
- Portfolio Holder for Community Safety for Worcestershire County Council (IP) 
- Portfolio Holder for Community Safety for Wyre Forest District Council (IP) 
- Victim Support (IP) 
- Worcestershire County Association of Local Councils (IP) 
- Worcestershire DAAT (IP) 
- Worcestershire Regulatory Services (IP) 
- VCS organisation to be invited (IP) 

 
§ Membership of North Worcestershire CSP will consist of one nominee (and a named 

substitute) from each of the above organisations.   
 

§ Project Managers will be invited to attend as required. 
 

§ The Chairperson may invite other agencies and/or officers as required depending on 
the nature/content of the meeting.  

 
New Members 
 
§ Additional members may join the North Worcestershire CSP on agreement and formal 

resolution by members.  
 

Meetings 
 
§ Meetings will be held on a quarterly basis. 

 

Page 14



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 7 

§ All members shall have one nominee on the partnership, although they may bring 
professional advisors to the meeting with the agreement in advance of the 
Chairperson. 

 

§ All members of the partnership are encouraged to aim for 100% attendance at 
meetings. Substitutes must have sufficient authority to represent/commit resources on 
behalf of their organisation.  

 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson   
 
§ The partnership will elect a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson who will each have a 

term of up to two years and stand for re-election at the end of each two year period. 
 
§ Eligibility for the role of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson is restricted to the 

representatives of the Responsible Authorities only.  
 

Decision Making 
 

§ North Worcestershire CSP will work to agree all decisions by consensus. However, if 
this is not possible decisions will be agreed by simple majority. For the purposes of 
transparency 11 members (six of which must be responsible authorities) will be 
considered quorate. 
 

§ Only one nominee from each organisation will be entitled to vote.  
 

Other Responsibilities 
 
§ To identify the training and support needs of members to ensure the necessary skills 

exist within the partnership to deliver its core functions. 
 

§ To monitor performance in relation to local, regional and national targets and ensure 
this information is available to be reported to the SCB. 

 

§ To provide updates to the Local Strategic Partnerships as required and provide 
representation at its board meetings when requested. 

 

§ To represent the North Worcestershire CSP as appropriate at local, regional and 
national forums.  

 

§ To identify opportunities to improve data collection and analysis. 
 

Scrutiny Arrangements 
 
§ Under Sections 19 to 20 of the Police and Justice Act (2006) North Worcestershire 

CSP will be subject to the scrutiny arrangements in place for each of the Local 
Authorities within its operating area. 
 

§ With adequate notice members of the North Worcestershire CSP will make 
themselves available to the district/county Scrutiny Committee to provide information 
or answer questions on the work of the CSP in the appropriate area.  

 

Page 15



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 8 

Delegation of Responsibilities 
 
The North Worcestershire CSP Chairperson is responsible for: 
 
§ Representing the interests of the North Worcestershire CSP at meetings, seminar and 

other functions. 
 
§ Voting for or agreeing to supporting projects that underpin the delivery of the 

Partnership’s Plan and operational priorities. 
 
§  Chairing regular quarterly meetings of the Partnership. 
 

§ Calling extra-ordinary meetings of the Partnership or the Operational Groups when 
necessary. 

 

§ In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson will assume these 
responsibilities and be able to represent the North Worcestershire CSP. 

 

§ Support Officers can represent the North Worcestershire CSP as needed but cannot 
assign or reassign funding to projects without prior agreement from the CSP. Neither 
can they alter or amend plans or outcomes without consulting the Chairperson/Vice 
Chairperson. 

 

§ The Community Safety Managers or equivalent across Bromsgrove, Redditch and 
Wyre Forest will meet regularly to co-ordinate the North Worcestershire CSP and 
support the Chairperson of the Partnership in agenda setting and fulfilling his/her 
responsibilities. 

 

§ The Community Safety Managers or equivalent will ensure that the interests of the 
North Worcestershire CSP and their local Operational Groups are fully represented at 
meetings and other functions.  
 
 

9. Community Safety Operational Groups 

 
Key Responsibilities 
 
§ To be responsible for the effective delivery of the North Worcestershire Partnership 

Plan and to report directly to the North Worcestershire CSP and its Chairperson. 
 

§ To work with partners to co-ordinate responses to tackle any predicted or emerging 
issues and to monitor the performance of actions and projects in relation to these 
responses. 

 

Criteria for Membership 
 
§ There is a core of organisations and individuals that may be requested to attend and 

are selected depending on nature/content of the Operational Group meeting. 
 

§ Membership for these groups will vary from district to district depending on the need 
for that area. 

Page 16



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 9 

 
§ All Operational Group meetings will include the attendance of representatives from the 

responsible authorities. 
 

§ Each Operational Group will have agreed terms of reference available for submission 
to the North Worcestershire CSP on request.   

 

Financial Procedures and Protocols  
 
§ It shall be the duty of the Chairperson and Community Safety Manager or equivalent 

to regulate and control the finances allocated to the Operational Group. The 
Community Safety Managers or equivalent shall be responsible for supervising the 
financial arrangements and for reporting on all financial matters. 
 

§ Redditch Borough Council and Wyre Forest District Council will act as custodian of 
Partnership funds which, under the Local Government Finance Act and Accounts and 
Audit regulations, will be incorporated into their accounts. 

 

§ All new bids and claims for funding will be approved by the North Worcestershire CSP 
where relevant.  

 
 

10. Performance Management 

 
The North Worcestershire CSP will be responsible for ensuring an effective performance 
management framework is in place in order to monitor and evaluate its work and 
outcomes.  
 
The North Worcestershire CSP will: 
 
§ Oversee the implementation of the North Worcestershire Community Safety 

Partnership Strategic Assessment. 
 

§ Implement, monitor and review the North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership Plan and assess the delivery of associated projects and milestones.  

 

§ Monitor and assess the value for money of community safety activities in North 
Worcestershire. 

 

§ Receive high level performance reports from each of the Operational Groups and 
actively scrutinise the work of the groups and all associated projects, promoting 
change and challenging convention where necessary.  

 

§ Report the North Worcestershire CSP performance to the Worcestershire SCB via the 
Policy and Commissioning Group as part of the countywide community safety 
performance framework.  

 

Page 17



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 10 

 

   11. Communications 

 

§ A Communications Strategy should provide an effective way of informing the local 
community and stakeholders of the work of the North Worcestershire CSP and provide 
consistent messages from its partners. 
 

§ Appendix 3 is the North Worcestershire CSP Communications Strategy - Operating 
Protocols. 

 
§ The strategy details the operating protocols for internal and external communications 

for North Worcestershire, the Operational Groups and branding and marketing of the 
North Worcestershire CSP. 

 

§ Ultimately the Chairperson of the North Worcestershire CSP will be responsible for 
ensuring that communications are generated and released on behalf of the 
partnership.  

 

Page 18



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 11 

APPENDIX 1 

Map of the Geographical Area covered by the North Worcestershire CSP 

 
 

 

Page 19



L
a
s
t 

u
p

d
a
te

d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

2
 

A
d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 C

S
P

 o
n
 2

5
th
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

 
P

a
g

e
 1

2
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

  
 

N
o

rt
h

 W
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e
 C

S
P

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 C

h
a

rt
 

R
e

d
d

it
ch

  

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
 

N
o

rt
h

  

W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

 C
S

P
 

W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

  

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
B

o
a

rd
 

W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

  

P
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
a

fe
ty

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
’ 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
v

e
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
 

W
y

re
 F

o
re

st
  

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

ro
u

p
 

N
o

rt
h

 W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

 H
a

te
 I

n
ci

d
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

  

N
o

rt
h

 W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
 G

ro
u

p
(s

) 

Page 20



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 13 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 
North Worcestershire CSP Communications Strategy - Operating Protocols 

 
 
Channels of Communication 
 
§ It is suggested that the current communications channels (internal and external) 

available across North Worcestershire are mapped by the Community Safety Managers 
or equivalent across Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest.  
 

§ The North Worcestershire CSP will agree the most appropriate communications 
channels to transmit key messages to its audiences. 

 

§ Possible channels include: 
- Publications e.g. newspapers, internal newsletters 
- Annual reports, business plans, research and evaluation reports 
- Media including TV and radio 
- Websites 
- Events 
- Word of mouth, public meetings, presentations, focus groups 
- Marketing materials e.g. leaflets, posters and brochures 

 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
§ In the interest of consistency and professionalism all communications will be co-

ordinated through the Community Safety Managers or equivalent in conjunction with the 
Chairperson of the North Worcestershire CSP and/or the Chairperson of the 
Operational Groups where appropriate. 
 

§ Community Safety Managers or equivalent will ensure that relevant partner agencies 
are given the opportunity to comment on all communications before general release. 
Partners will be asked to ensure they comment within a timely manner to ensure the 
release meets press deadlines.  
 

§ Partners will agree to share information and knowledge that may be of mutual benefit. 
 

§ Partners will agree to keep each other fully informed of any issues which may affect 
each other, for example press interest in a particular story.  
 

§ Partners will agree to notify each other of any campaigns, publications etc. which may 
be of mutual interest.   

 
Press Releases 
 
§ All North Worcestershire CSP press releases must include a short quote from the 

Chairperson and where appropriate and beneficial additional quotes should be included 
from key partners. 
 

Page 21



Last updated July 2012 
Adopted by the North Worcestershire CSP on 25

th
 September 2012 Page 14 

§ All press releases must be signed off by the Chairperson or the Vice Chairperson in 
advance of circulation for release. 

 

§ The Operational Groups may issue press releases where a project has solely been 
delivered in their respective district. Where this is the case a press release must include 
a quote from the North Worcestershire CSP Chairperson and the Operational Group 
Chairperson. Both parties must have signed off the press release before its circulation. 

 

§ A draft copy of the press release should be sent to the Community Safety Managers or 
equivalent who will liaise with the North Worcestershire CSP Chairperson for 
endorsement.  

 

§ The Community Safety Managers or equivalent will then advise the partner(s) issuing 
the press release of any comments or additions that the Chairperson may wish to be 
considered for inclusion. 

 

§ Following any required revision, the partner(s) can then forward the press release to the 
local media, ensuring the Chairperson is advised of any photo-call opportunity. 

 

§ Press releases must be issued on North Worcestershire CSP headed paper. 
 

§ A copy of the issued press release must be given to the Community Safety Managers 
or equivalent for file and audit purposes.  

 
Resources 
 
§ The North Worcestershire CSP will agree the allocation of pooled resources for joint 

CSP communications activity. It is anticipated that North Worcestershire CSP projects 
will be identified at the beginning of the financial year, which will support forward 
planning of communications related activity. 
 

Branding and Marketing 
 
§ The North Worcestershire CSP is developing a logo to be used for all branding related 

activities. It has also adopted the strap line ‘North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership – Keeping North Worcestershire a safer place to live, work and visit.’ 
 

§ Operational Groups will use the North Worcestershire CSP logo and/or the strap line 
‘Safer Bromsgrove/Redditch/Wyre Forest - supported by the North Worcestershire 
Community Safety Partnership.  

 

Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
§ A review of the communications strategy will be undertaken on an annual basis. 

 
§ All communications activities will be collated and reported on a quarterly basis to the 

North Worcestershire CSP. 
 
§ A process to evaluate the effectiveness of communication activities will be developed.  
 

Page 22



1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

NORTH WORCESTERSHIRE 
COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

PLAN  
2013-16 

 
  

Page 23



2 

 

 
Contents 
 
 Page No 

Foreword 
 

3 

About North Worcestershire 
 

5 

North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 
 

6 

Strategic Assessment  
 

9 

North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership Priorities 
 

10 

Action Plans 2013/14 
 

19 

Partnership Changes and Challenges 
 

24 

Monitoring Progress 
 

25 

Resources 
 

25 

Section 17 Responsibilities 
 

26 

Community Engagement 
 

26 

Communications Strategy 
 

27 

Partners 
 

30 

Contact Us 
 

32 

 
 

  

Page 24



3 

 

Foreword 
 
It gives me great pleasure to introduce the first Partnership Plan of the newly 
formed North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership (CSP).  
 
This North Worcestershire partnership will continue to build on the efforts and 
achievements of the previous district CSPs and we believe that by coming together 
on a more formal, statutory basis we have put ourselves in a stronger position to 
respond to any forthcoming challenges in the arena of community safety and crime 
reduction.   
 
There has already been significant change to our way of working, for example the 
dissolution of Police Authorities and the election of Police and Crime 
Commissioners, the move away from central government control towards localism 
and significant changes within health services that have created a new CSP 
responsible authority in Clinical Commissioning Groups.   
 
North Worcestershire CSP is believed to be the first in the country to have 
officially merged following the signing of a combination agreement by a PCC and 
this new arrangement means that organisations are better placed to work together 
to reduce crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour affecting local communities; 
avoiding duplication, sharing resources and expertise and promoting good practice 
across the whole of North Worcestershire.   
 
Inevitably this plan has been developed at a time of substantial economic change.  
Budgets across the public sector continue to reduce dramatically and our partners 
will need to identify significant savings in the forthcoming years whilst continuing 
to provide and maintain high quality services that meet the needs of customers 
and users.  Whilst this will no doubt present some challenges, our partnership can 
take great pride in a successful history of joint working and collaboration.  
 
The foundations of North Worcestershire CSP are built on 3 district partnerships 
that have a proven track record of identifying and channelling external and 
mainstream funding toward community safety initiatives.  Our partners will 
continue to work together to improve safety across the area, identifying the most 
serious crime and community safety problems that affect our communities and 
allocating resources effectively to solve those issues.  
 
Within this economic context we should never forget the emotional costs of crime, 
anti-social behaviour, drug and alcohol misuse which are borne by victims, their 
families and local communities. For example, research suggests that the 
measurable cost of a single residential burglary offence to the householder and the 
Criminal Justice System is in the region of £3,500.  However, we also know that 
the impact of that crime on the victim and their family can be a deeply traumatic 
and life altering experience and that is something that it is impossible to put a 
price on.   
 
Our planned work for the next three years is based on five priorities, with 
proposed actions for each set out in greater detail later in this document: 
 

§ To maintain low crime levels and improve public confidence 
§ Reducing the impact of alcohol and drugs misuse on communities 

Page 25



4 

 

§ Reducing Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Vulnerable People 
§ Reducing re-offending 
§ Reducing Anti Social Behaviour 

 
Community Safety Partnerships were introduced in recognition of the fact that the 
causes of crime, anti-social behaviour, drug and alcohol misuse and environmental 
disorder are varied and complex. We recognise that the solutions to these 
problems will require innovation, shared expertise and high levels of co-operation 
and teamwork.  We also recognise that the rich diversity amongst our communities 
in North Worcestershire may require different approaches and solutions to be 
applied in different areas to meet the needs of those most at risk but ultimately 
the outcome achieved will be the same.  
 
A North Worcestershire that is safe, secure and vibrant for all residents, businesses 
and visitors. 
 

Sue Hanley 
Chair, North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 
  

Page 26



5 

 

 
About North Worcestershire 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(This information has been taken from a variety of data sources including the ONS, 
CACI, West Mercia Police, Department of Work & Pensions and the 2011 Census 
figures.) 
 
North Worcestershire is located in the county of Worcestershire, in the West 
Midlands region. It comprises Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest, with a mix of 
towns, villages and rural areas covering 178 square miles.  The 2011 Census 
estimates North Worcestershire’s population is approximately 275,826, with an 
estimated 115,997 households. By gender this can be broken down into 49% males 
and 51% females. The average age of someone living in North Worcestershire is 
41.4 years, compared to an average age of 39.4 years in England and Wales.  
 
In North Worcestershire 18% of the population is under 16, 63% are 16-64 and 19% 
are over 65 years of age. 92.1% of the population is classified as White British. The 
remaining 7.9% are from ethnic groups other than White British including White 
Other, Asian, African, Caribbean and Chinese.   

 
Crime and Disorder 
North Worcestershire is one of the safest parts of the country to live, work and 
visit. There has been a significant reduction in crime and anti-social behaviour 
over the years. However we recognise that there are perceptions that people may 
not feel reassured that this is necessarily the case.  We know that there is always 
more that can be done to make people feel and be safer and to improve 
community wellbeing, particularly around supporting and protecting the most 
vulnerable people in our society.   

Page 27



6 

 

North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership 
 
North Worcestershire CSP was formed in April 2013 and brings together and 
replaces the original CSPs in Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest, which had 
been in place since 1998 as a result of the Crime and Disorder Act. The partnership 
covers the whole area within Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest Councils’ 
administrative boundaries. 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998, amended by the Police Reform Act 2002, makes 
it a statutory duty for certain organisations (known as responsible authorities) to 
work in partnership to develop strategies to reduce reoffending, tackle crime and 
disorder, anti social behaviour, alcohol and substance misuse and any other 
behaviour, which has a negative effect on the local environment.    
 
The purpose of the North Worcestershire CSP is to provide a strategic and co-
ordinated approach between agencies and communities across the area to address 
local community safety issues. Our vision is: ‘Keeping North Worcestershire a safe 
place to live, work and visit.’ This vision is underpinned by the following aims: 
 

§ To address the wider causes of crime and fear of crime 
§ To encourage community cohesion 
§ To reduce alcohol related harm 
§ To identify opportunities to reduce substance misuse 
§ To promote a community where domestic abuse and the fear of domestic 

abuse is not tolerated 
§ To promote a community where hate crime is unacceptable and those 

victims of hate crime are supported 
§ To provide effective, strategic leadership generating effective partnership 

working 
§ To deliver measurable outcomes 

 
 
Statutory Requirements for CSPs 
In recent years CSPs have been given much more freedom and flexibility regarding 
how they operate and manage performance. The statutory duties of CSPs are to: 
 

§ Undertake a Strategic Assessment and to produce a three year rolling 
Partnership Plan, revised annually. 

 
§ Hold one or more public meetings on an annual basis, to be attended by all 

responsible authorities at a senior level. 
 

§ Determine whether a Domestic Homicide Review should be conducted. The 
CSP Chair is responsible to the Home Office regarding this duty.  
 

What is the Partnership Plan?  
The plan is a three year document which is refreshed on an annual basis. The plan 
outlines the Partnership priorities, which are determined by a process called the 
Community Safety Strategic Assessment. In determining the priorities, the 
assessment considers a range of data and intelligence from different sources, such 
as police crime figures, anti social behaviour data and findings from public 
consultation.  

Page 28



7 

 

 
Structure of the NWCSP 

 

 
 
Safer Communities Board 
In Worcestershire, community safety is strategically co-ordinated through the Safer 
Communities Board (SCB). The SCB also oversees a number of strategic groups 
including Domestic Abuse and Sexual Abuse Forums and the Integrated Offender 
Management (IOM) Strategic Group. North Worcestershire CSP is represented in all 
levels of the SCB and provides performance monitoring and reports to the SCB 
Policy and Commissioning Group.  
 
North Worcestershire CSP 
North Worcestershire CSP is a strategic group which brings together the responsible 
authorities and other partners across the area. It is responsible for monitoring and 
evaluating the implementation of the Partnership Plan, submitting bids for 
external funding to support delivery of the Partnership Plan, linking the work of 
the CSP to other bodies wherever required and identifying support required to 
progress delivery of the Partnership Plan.  
 
North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership 
The North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership aims to tackle all forms of 
hate crime and targeted harassment across North Worcestershire. The Partnership 
was established in July 2012 following a merger of Bromsgrove Hate Incident 
Partnership, Redditch Anti Harassment Partnership and Wyre Forest Hate Incident 
Partnership. It includes representatives from a number of statutory, voluntary and 
community organisations including Redditch Borough Council, Bromsgrove District 
Council, Wyre Forest District Council, Local Registered Social Landlords, West 

Operational Groups  

 

Safer Bromsgrove 

Safer Redditch 

Safer Wyre Forest 

North  

Worcestershire CSP 

 

Worcestershire  

Safer Communities Board 

Policy and 

Commissioning Group 

Wyre Forest Vulnerable 

Adults Group 

North Worcestershire  

Hate Incident  

Partnership  

 

Bromsgrove and 

Redditch Vulnerable 

Adults Group 

 

Page 29



8 

 

Mercia Police, West Mercia Probation Trust, Youth Offending Teams and Victim 
Support. 
 
The Partnership meets regularly to monitor reports received through the Hate 
Incident Reporting Scheme, discuss harassment cases that have been referred by 
local agencies and identify appropriate support to victims and witnesses. The 
Partnership also provides a forum for organisations to share best practice. 
 
District Operational Groups 
Delivery on the ground is at the heart of the North Worcestershire CSP and local 
operational groups known as Safer Bromsgrove, Safer Redditch and Safer Wyre 
Forest ensure that local issues and concerns remain at the centre of the new 
Partnership’s priorities, projects and campaigns. The groups are responsible for 
delivering local actions from the Partnership Plan.  
 
They discuss community safety issues brought to their attention and use a problem 
solving approach to identify effective actions to address these and allocate 
resources accordingly. They also promote public reassurance and engage with the 
media on different aspects of local community safety actions. 
 
Vulnerable Adults Groups 
Two groups exist in North Worcestershire, one for Bromsgrove and Redditch and 
one for Wyre Forest. They are co-ordinated by the respective councils for the 
areas. Multi agency panels come together to look at repeat concerns about an 
individual’s vulnerability and behavioural issues in their local area. 
 

Page 30



9
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

is
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e
 l

e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s 
o
f 

c
ri

m
e
 a

n
d

 d
is

o
rd

e
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
st

a
n
c
e
 m

is
u
se

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s 

th
e
 
C
S
P
 
sh

o
u
ld

 
a
d
o
p
t 

to
 
a
d
d
re

ss
 
th

o
se

 
m

a
tt

e
rs

. 
In

 
d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 
th

e
 
p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s 

th
e
 
C
S
P
 
h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 
ta

k
e
n
 
in

to
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

th
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’

s 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s,

 t
h
o
se

 o
f 

th
e
 P

C
C
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s 

a
s 

le
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

a
fe

r 
C
o
m

m
u
n
it

ie
s 

B
o
a
rd

. 
  

 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s 

W
e
st

 M
e
rc

ia
 P

o
li

c
e
 &

 C
ri

m
e
 

P
la

n
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s 

W
o
rc

e
st

e
rs

h
ir

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s 

N
o
rt

h
 W

o
rc

e
st

e
rs

h
ir

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
v
io

le
n
t 

c
ri

m
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
si

s 
o
n
 

a
d
d
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

a
r m

 c
a
u
se

d
 b

y
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

o
rk

in
g
  

D
ru

g
s 

&
 A

lc
o
h
o
l 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

id
e
n
ti

fi
e
d
 a

c
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s 

a
re

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

ig
h
t 

ti
m

e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
c
e
, 

d
ru

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri

m
e
 a

n
d
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 a

b
u
se

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 d

ru
g
 

a
n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
u
se

. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

 c
a
u
se

d
 b

y
 

d
ru

g
s 

w
it

h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s 

o
n
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ti

n
g
 t

h
o
se

 
th

a
t 

c
a
u
se

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 h
a
rm

 

W
o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 m

o
st

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

o
u
r 

so
c
ie

ty
  

D
o
m

e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
P
e
o
p
le

 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

a
c
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s 

a
re

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 d

ru
g
 u

se
rs

, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
p
ro

n
e
 t

o
 a

n
ti

-s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

o
r 

a
lc

o
h
o
l/

d
ru

g
 u

se
, 

v
ic

ti
m

s 
o
f 

d
o
m

e
st

ic
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
, 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
b
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 h

a
ra

ss
m

e
n
t,

 v
io

le
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

d
o
m

e
st

ic
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 a
n
d
/
o
r 

c
ri

m
in

a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
n
ti

-
so

c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 
A
n
ti

-s
o
c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

C
o
m

m
o
n
 t

h
e
m

e
s 

a
c
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s 

a
re

 y
o
u
th

 a
n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
re

la
te

d
 a

n
ti

-s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 o
r 

h
a
ra

ss
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

. 
N

e
g
a
ti

v
e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti

o
n
s 

o
f 

a
n
ti

 
so

c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r.

  
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

ta
y
S
a
fe

 w
a
s 

a
 N

o
rt

h
 W

o
rc

e
st

e
rs

h
ir

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti

fy
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ti

n
g
 i
n
 a

n
 a

n
ti

-s
o
c
ia

l 
w

a
y
 o

r 
u
si

n
g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
o
r 

d
ru

g
s.

 
T
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 a

 s
a
fe

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
ls

 c
a
n
 r

e
fe

r 
th

e
m

 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir

 g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s 

to
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

B
ri

n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 R

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

L
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

 o
ff

e
n
c
e
 t

y
p
e
s 

o
f;

 s
h
o
p
li
ft

in
g
, 

a
ss

a
u
lt

s,
 d

ru
g
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s,

 a
n
d
 

c
ri

m
in

a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
s 

a
m

o
n
g
st

 s
p
e
c
if

ic
 a

re
a
s 

a
lt

e
r 

th
e
 f

o
c
u
s 

in
 e

a
c
h
 

d
is

tr
ic

t.
 K

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s 

a
re

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti

fy
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 t
a
rg

e
t 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
t 

c
o
m

b
a
ti

n
g
 t

h
e
 i
ss

u
e
 a

n
d
 a

li
g
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s 

w
it

h
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 O

ff
e
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
im

s 
a
t 

a
 c

o
u
n
ty

 l
e
v
e
l 

T
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
o
li
c
in

g
 R

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 

- 
P
re

v
e
n
ti

n
g
 V

io
le

n
t 

 
E
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 

P
re

v
e
n
ti

n
g
 V

io
le

n
t 

E
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 
C
o
m

m
o
n
 t

h
e
m

e
 a

c
ro

ss
 a

ll
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
s 

to
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
ss

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s.

 T
a
c
k
le

d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
ty

 l
e
v
e
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

li
tt

le
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 
v
a
ri

a
ti

o
n
 

Page 31



10 

 

 

North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership Priorities 
 
Over recent years there has been a significant reduction in crime and disorder across 
North Worcestershire and in the majority of areas resident perceptions of crime, anti 
social behaviour and the safety of their local neighbourhood continues to improve.  
However, there are places in North Worcestershire where crime and the fear of crime 
are higher than in other locations. In order to build on the significant progress already 
made by the previous district partnerships, North Worcestershire CSP must continue to 
prioritise those issues of most concern to our local communities and target resources 
effectively. The issues that we plan to prioritise during 2013/16 are: 
 
§ To maintain low crime levels and improve public confidence 

 
§ Reducing the impact of alcohol and drugs misuse on communities 
 
§ Reducing Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Vulnerable People 
 
§ Reducing re-offending 
 
§ Reducing Anti Social Behaviour 
 
 
Priority:  To maintain low crime levels and improve public confidence 
 
§ All crime and disorder whether serious crimes or low level incidents directly or 

indirectly impacts upon individuals and communities, affects health and wellbeing 
and can damage people’s quality of life. 

 
§ Often the fear of crime affects people's well-being as much as their experience of 

actual crime as this often affected people’s ability to play a full and active part in 
their communities and compromises the independence of vulnerable people.  

 
§ Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour requires a careful balance between 

reducing recorded incidents, encouraging reporting and addressing the negative 
perceptions of those who believe crime is worse than it really is. 

 
§ The Prevent Strategy continues to remain a priority within Worcestershire, the 

primary focus continues to be around training and awareness raising and ensuring 
that all partner agencies have access to training packages. 

 
What was achieved in 2012/13? 
§ Progress continued to be made in reducing the levels of crime and disorder in North 

Worcestershire. 
 
§ Total recorded crime down by 19%, 3514 fewer offences for 2012/13. This continues 

the downward trend as seen in recent years.  
 
§ ASB incidents recorded by West Mercia Police reduced by 11.1%, 1548 fewer 

incidents for 2012/13. 
 
§ Successful delivery of a variety of district specific community safety projects and 

initiatives through established CSP operational group action plans. 

Page 32



11 

 

 
§ Effective Home Security Schemes, which support victims of crime and vulnerable 

people, continue in each district. 
 
Objectives for 2013/14 
§ Deliver crime prevention initiatives to reduce crime. 
 
§ Co-ordinate community safety campaigns in response to key issues; to support crime 

reduction initiatives and reinforce positive messages about community safety in the 
area. 

 
§ Develop and implement a programme of community consultation and engagement to 

provide reassurance to communities and address fear of crime and community 
concerns.  

 
§ Prevent violent extremism by providing appropriate training and awareness raising 

packages to relevant audiences. 
 
Measures 2013/14 
§ We will measure our success by monitoring and responding accordingly to: 

 
- Total Recorded Crime 
- Number of Dwelling Burglary offences 
- Number of Non dwelling burglary offences 
- Number of Theft from a motor vehicle offences 
- Number of Theft of a motor vehicle offences 
- Number of Robbery offences  
- Number of Shoplifting offences 
- Number of Prevent training packages delivered  
- Outcomes of the specific projects funded by the partnership 
- We will develop suitable measures regarding public confidence and reassurance 

 
  

Page 33



12 

 

Priority: Reducing the impact of alcohol and drugs misuse on communities 
 
§ Drug and alcohol misuse can have negative social, economic, health and community 

safety impacts affecting users, their families and wider communities.  
 
§ Providing effective drug and alcohol treatment is important to support crime 

prevention and reoffending where substance misuse is an underlying problem. 
 
§ The night time economy (NTE), primarily consisting of pubs, night clubs and fast-

food outlets is often a focus for alcohol related crime and disorder including violent 
offences, criminal damage and sexual assaults. 

 
§ Binge Drinking and ‘Pre-Loading’ (drinking at home or in a public place before going 

out) are drinking practices which can lead to a higher risk of crime or being 
victimised and also place an increased burden on public services such as policing, 
enforcement, transport and street cleansing. 

 
What was achieved in 2012/13? 
§ Supported Street Pastors to be established in Bromsgrove and Wyre Forest. 
 
§ Supported and promoted targeted operations and key campaigns around responsible 

drinking throughout the year.  
 
§ Co-ordinated and implemented Redditch Town Centre improvements including 

improved CCTV, street lighting and landscaping. 
 
§ Support provided to local pub watch schemes and licensees associations. 
 
§ Welcomed CRI Pathways to Recovery services to North Worcestershire, providing 

services to reduce harm and promote recovery from substance misuse. 
 
Objectives 2013/14 
§ Reduce the harmful effects of drugs and alcohol on the night time economy, on 

young people in public places, and on relationships. 
 
§ Continue to work with local Licensee Associations and Worcestershire Regulatory 

Services and to promote a safe, responsible Night Time Economy across North 
Worcestershire. 

 
§ Continue to work with and support CRI Pathways to Recovery and other local Drug 

and Alcohol Service providers to promote access to support for those seeking help 
for substance misuse. 

 
§ Promote and support educational campaigns to target proxy sales and other forms of 

inappropriate supply of alcohol to young people. 
 

Measures 2013/14 
§ We will measure our success by monitoring and responding accordingly to: 
 

- The number of alcohol related recorded crimes 
- The number of alcohol related admissions for under 18s 
- The percentage of service users completing a Structured Alcohol Recovery 

Programme 
 

Page 34



13 

 

- The percentage of service users completing a Structured Drug Recovery 
Programme 

- The number of Night Time Economy related crimes occurring within town centre 
areas between 8pm and 5:59am 

- The number of assault without injury offences  
- The number of violence against the person with injury offences 
- The outcomes of the specific projects funded by the partnership 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 35



14 

 

 
Priority:  Reducing Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Vulnerable People 
 
§ Research shows that certain crimes such as those involving Domestic Abuse or Hate 

are often hidden crimes that are significantly under-reported for a variety of 
reasons. The Partnership is committed to ensuring that those people whose voices 
are not heard but are most in need should be a key focus of our attention. 

 
§ In the Government’s national strategies to tackle Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence, and Hate Crime, Community Safety Partnership’s have a key role in 
supporting victims, preventing harm and bringing perpetrators to justice. 

 
§ Countywide Domestic Abuse strategies are developed and monitored through 

Worcestershire Forum against Domestic Abuse and the newly formed Worcestershire 
Sexual Violence Forum and CSP representation ensures local need and priorities are 
identified and resources targeted appropriately. 

 
§ North Worcestershire is leading the way in its approach to tackling Hate Crime, with 

its hugely successful Hate Incident Partnership.  This dedicated forum has a key role 
in prevention work, increasing reporting and access to support and also improving 
operational responses to Hate Crime.  
 

What was achieved in 2012/13? 
§ A number of successful awareness raising events across North Worcestershire as part 

of the 16 days of action domestic abuse campaign including a series of ‘These Hands 
are not for Hurting Banners and a men’s Heels walk in support of the national White 
Ribbon campaign.  

 
§ Co-ordinated seasonal publicity campaigns around domestic abuse, stalking and 

sexual violence. 
 
§ Successful merger to create North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership to 

support victims and witnesses of Hate Crime and targeted harassment. 
 
§ Development and implementation of a school Hate Crime education project 

providing awareness raising workshops to pupils at a variety of high schools.  
 
§ Developed and maintained support for Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults multi-agency 

groups across the area to monitor and manage complex cases with a high risk of 
harm to individuals and local communities.  

 
Objectives 2013/14 
§ Identify individuals who may be vulnerable and assist them in accessing appropriate 

services. 
 
§ Protect vulnerable residents from becoming a victim of crime within their home 

(including burglary and domestic abuse).  
 
§ Reduce the harmful effects of hate crime through the work of the Hate Incident 

Partnership. 
 
§ Provide support to relevant multi agency forums set up to co-ordinate interventions 

and support for vulnerable and repeat victims, enforcement against offenders and 
actions in identified problem locations. 

Page 36



15 

 

 
Measures 2013/14 
§ We will measure our success by monitoring and responding accordingly to: 

 
- The total number of Hate Crimes recorded 
- The number of Disability Hate Crimes recorded 
- The number of Race Hate Crimes recorded 
- The number of Religion Hate Crimes recorded 
- The number of Sexuality Hate Crime recorded 
- The number of Transgender Hate Crimes recorded 
- The number of Hate Crimes reported to the North Worcestershire Hate Incident 

Partnership 
- The number of crimes with Vulnerable Adult Marker 
- The number of new MARAC cases 
- The number of repeat MARAC cases 
- The percentage of total MARAC cases that were repeats  
- The total number of recorded crimes and incidents given a domestic abuse 

interest maker or action code 
- The number of recorded crimes defined as domestic abuse related  
- The number of incidents or calls to service defined as domestic abuse related 
- Attrition rates from IDVA service 
- The number of Domestic Violence Prevention Notices issued 
- The outcomes of the specific projects funded by the partnership 

 
 
 
  

Page 37



16 

 

Priority: Reducing Re-offending 
 
§ A relatively small number of highly prolific offenders are responsible for a 

disproportionate amount of crime. These criminals cause immense damage to the 
lives of law-abiding citizens who live near them. 

 
§ The National Audit Office has estimated that the social and economic costs of 

reoffending by those released from short sentences alone are between £7–10 billion 
a year. 

 
§ Reducing Re-offending and Integrated Offender Management is delivered via 

countywide arrangements. However, the North Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership retains a statutory duty to ensure delivery and as such is part of the 
strategic group and governance arrangements for Integrated Offender Management.  

 
What was achieved in 2012/13? 
§ Supported delivery of Worcestershire IOM Conference to raise awareness of IOM 

practices and support development of a countywide strategy. 
 
§ Supported countywide work into developing a needs assessment framework for IOM 

and embedding the work of the ODOC (One Day One Conversation - prolific and other 
priority offenders/integrated offender management operational teams). 

 
§ Supported IOM co-location in Redditch and Wyre Forest of police, probation and 

Pathways to Recovery. 
 
§ Maintained and developed strong links with Neighbourhood Watch Scheme including 

distribution and promotion of forensic property marking kits and other crime 
prevention tools. 

 
§ Co-ordinated multi-agency campaigns in response to emerging burglary “hot-spots” 

and seasonal risk factors. e.g., open windows during the summer period and pre-
Christmas alerts to reduce prolific acquisitive crime. 

 
Objectives 2013/14 
§ Identify and reduce the re-offending of those that cause the most harm in 

communities through Integrated Offender Management (IOM) processes. 
 
§ Maintain and develop “target hardening” services for vulnerable households and 

continue support for vehicle security messages across the area to reduce 
opportunities for prolific acquisitive crime. 

 
§ Ensure offenders are seen to contribute to the work of the CSPs through targeted 

community payback. 
 
Measures 2013/14 
§ We will measure our success by monitoring and responding accordingly to: 

 
- The number of arrests IOM cohort (statutory) 
- The number of arrests IOM cohort (non-statutory) 
- The number of charges IOM cohort (statutory) 
- The number of charges IOM cohort (non statutory) 
- The number of community payback hours completed 

Page 38



17 

 

 
Priority:  Reducing Anti Social Behaviour 
 
§ Anti-social behaviour is identified in all consultations as an aspect of crime and 

disorder that causes great concern to local residents and it also places a significant 
burden on public resources. 

 
§ ASB can include behaviour such as excessive noise, graffiti, abandoned cars and 

threatening behaviour which can leave people feeling intimidated, angry or 
frightened. North Worcestershire CSP works with all its partners to reduce levels of 
ASB so that its residents can maintain a good quality of life. 

 
§ Although there have been significant reductions in ASB reported to the police, it is 

suggested that there is a certain amount that remains unreported. 
 
§ Results from November 2012 Viewpoint Survey show Perceptions of ASB as a problem 

at 18.9%.  This is a slight deterioration compared to results from November 2011 at 
16.9%. Consideration needs to be given to reducing any gap between perceptions 
and actual issues and targeting those areas where under-reporting may exist. 

 
What was achieved in 2012/13? 
§ Through Operation StaySafe, identified and promoted referral and intervention 

processes to reduce the number of young people who are repeatedly involved in 
antisocial behaviour.  

 
§ Supported and promoted a variety of projects, initiatives and events to reduce youth 

related ASB, such as restorative resolutions, substance misuse referrals, diversionary 
and preventative workshops in schools and youth clubs. 

 
§ Co-ordinated and promoted enforcement and education activity through multi 

agency forums to target locations where alcohol related anti social behaviour is a 
problem. 

 
§ Provided support via multi agency forums for countywide processes to re-structure 

delivery of Positive Activities, Early Help and Stronger Families services across 
Worcestershire. 

 
Objectives 2013/14 
§ Reduce the harm caused to individuals and communities by anti-social behaviour. 
 
§ Tackle youth related anti-social behaviour by supporting the provision of targeted 

and non-targeted positive activities. 
 
§ Protect repeat victims of anti-social behaviour. 
 
§ Recognise the positive contributions young people make to their local communities. 
 
Measures 2013/14 
§ We will measure our success by monitoring and responding accordingly to: 

 
- The total number of ASB incidents recorded 
- The number of ASB environmental incidents recorded 
- The number of ASB nuisance incidents recorded 
- The number of ASB personal incidents recorded 

Page 39



18 

 

- The number of Youth ASB incidents recorded 
- The number of Alcohol ASB incidents recorded  
- The percentage of residents who perceive ASB to be a problem in their area 
- The outcomes of the specific projects funded by the partnership 

 
 

Page 40



19 

 

Action Plans 2013/14 
 

 
Priority: To maintain low crime levels and improve public confidence 
 

Objectives:  
§ Deliver crime prevention initiatives to reduce crime. 
§ Co-ordinate community safety campaigns in response to key issues; to 

support crime reduction initiatives and reinforce positive messages about 
community safety in the area. 

§ Develop and implement a programme of community consultation and 
engagement to provide reassurance to communities and address fear of 
crime and community concerns. 

§ Prevent violent extremism by providing appropriate training and awareness 
raising packages to relevant audiences. 

Action Responsibility Target Date Resources 

Develop and implement a 
range of partnership actions 
to improve confidence and 
change negative perceptions 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Continue to develop and keep 
updated the NWCSP website 

Community Safety 
Teams 

March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Promote activities to advise 
the public on crime 
prevention by delivering 
campaigns in response to 
trends 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Support the implementation 
of the recommendations from 
the Counter Terrorism Local 
Profiles  

Worcestershire 
Prevent Group 

March 2014 Officer time 

 
  

Page 41



20 

 

 
 
Priority: Reducing the impact of alcohol and drugs misuse on communities 
 

Objectives:  
§ Reduce the harmful effects of drugs and alcohol on the night time economy, 

on young people in public places, and on relationships. 
§ Continue to work with local Licensee Associations and Worcestershire 

Regulatory Services and to promote a safe, responsible Night Time Economy 
across North Worcestershire. 

§ Continue to work with and support CRI Pathways to Recovery and other local 
Drug and Alcohol Service providers to promote access to support for those 
seeking help for substance misuse. 

§ Promote and support educational campaigns to target proxy sales and other 
forms of inappropriate supply of alcohol to young people. 

Action Responsibility Target Date Resources 

Continue to support Street 
Pastors in local areas 

Operational Groups March 2014 Officer time 

Develop and implement a 
range of partnership activities 
to address alcohol related 
crime and disorder linking in 
with countywide strategies 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Promote activities to advise 
the public on crime 
prevention by delivering 
campaigns in response to 
trends 

NWCSP Board 
Operational Groups 

March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Work in partnership and 
continue to engage with 
organisations that can have a 
positive impact on the night 
time economy 

NWCSP Board 
Operational Groups 

March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Work in partnership and 
support organisations that 
work to reduce the harm 
caused by substance misuse, 
including Novel Psychoactive 
Substances 

NWCSP Board 
Operational Groups 

March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

  

Page 42



21 

 

 
Priority: Reducing Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Vulnerable People 
 

Objectives:  
§ Identify individuals who may be vulnerable and assist them in accessing 

appropriate services. 
§ Protect vulnerable residents from becoming a victim of crime within their 

home (including burglary and domestic abuse). 
§ Reduce the harmful effects of hate crime through the work of the Hate 

Incident Partnership. 
§ Provide support to relevant multi agency forums set up to co-ordinate 

interventions and support for vulnerable and repeat victims, enforcement 
against offenders and actions in identified problem locations. 

Action Responsibility Target Date Resources 

Continue to play an active 
role in the Worcestershire 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual 
Violence Forums and 
implement relevant actions at 
a local level 

NWCSP Board 
Operational Groups 

March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Develop and implement a 
range of partnership activities 
to address alcohol related 
crime and disorder linking in 
with countywide strategies 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Continue to support and 
develop the Vulnerable Adults 
Groups 

NWCSP Board 
Wyre Forest District 
Council 
Redditch Borough 
Council 

March 2014 Officer time 

Continue to support and 
promote the Hate Incident 
Partnership 

NWHIP March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Continue to operate Home 
Security Scheme and 
Sanctuary Projects and look at 
where potential efficiencies 
and savings can be made 
across North Worcestershire 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

 
 
 
  

Page 43



22 

 

 
Priority: Reducing Anti Social Behaviour 
 

Objectives:  
§ Reduce the harm caused to individuals and communities by anti-social 

behaviour. 
§ Tackle youth related anti-social behaviour by supporting the provision of 

targeted and non-targeted positive activities. 
§ Protect repeat victims of anti-social behaviour. 
§ Recognise the positive contributions young people make to their local 

communities. 

Action Responsibility Target Date Resources 

Develop and implement a 
range 
of Partnership Activities to 
address ASB 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant 
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Develop and implement a 
range of activities regarding 
perceptions of ASB 
 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant  
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Identify and tackle ASB 
hotspots in order to conduct 
targeted initiatives 

Operational Groups March 2014 PCC Grant  
Partner 
contributions 
Officer time 

Support the development of 
Early Help and Stronger 
Families Programmes  

NWCSP March 2014 Officer time 

Continue to work with youth 
provision organisations 
including both statutory and 
voluntary sectors 

Operational Groups March 2014 Officer time 
PCC Grant 

  

Page 44



23 

 

 
Priority: Reducing Re-offending 
 

Objectives:  
§ Identify and reduce the re-offending of those that cause the most harm in 

communities through Integrated Offender Management (IOM) processes. 
§ Maintain and develop “target hardening” services for vulnerable households and 

continue support for vehicle security messages across the area to reduce 
opportunities for prolific acquisitive crime. 

§ Ensure offenders are seen to contribute to the work of the CSPs through targeted 
community payback. 

Action Responsibility Target Date Resources 

Continue to develop and 
promote local crime 
prevention projects and 
initiatives  

Operational Groups March 2014 Officer time 
PCC Grant 

To consider developing 
mechanisms to enable 
the community to access 
community payback 

NWCSP March 2014 Officer time 

Support the delivery of 
IOM and associated 
activities through 
participation in the IOM 
Strategic Group 

NWCSP March 2014 Officer time 

 
 

Page 45



24 

 

Partnership Changes and Challenges 
 
Police and Crime Commissioner  
In late 2012 the West Mercia Police Authority was decommissioned and replaced by 
a new Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC), who was elected in November 2012. 
The PCC is directly accountable to voters every four years and is scrutinised by a 
panel made up of other elected and independent members (Police Crime Panel). 
The PCC has statutory duties for holding the Chief Constable to account for the 
delivery of efficient and effective service through the setting of a five year Police 
and Crime Plan, and oversees value for money and performance. The PCC is not a 
responsible authority within the partnership but there is a reciprocal duty for the 
CSP and PCC to co-operate. The partnership will work closely with the PCC, his 
office and other partners across the West Mercia region to achieve this duty.  
 
We have seen a significant change in the way funding is allocated, as funding that 
was previously allocated to CSPs has been transferred to the PCC. This year we 
have been successful in our bids to the PCC for the same levels of funding that we 
received in 2012/13. For future year’s funding the bidding process will be more 
challenging as the funding will not be ring-fenced and is likely to be available to 
more than just CSPs to bid for, as was the case this year. In 2013/14 it is important 
that we evaluate everything that we do and continue to demonstrate our 
effectiveness and value for money.  
 
Significant changes for Partners 
There have been a number of significant changes within each of our partner 
organisations due to amendments in legislation, budget reductions and changes in 
resources. In 2012 a West Mercia Youth Offending Service was launched, it is 
managed on a day-to-day basis by West Mercia Probation Trust.  
 
Significant changes are also on the horizon for probation services across England 
and Wales, with the government having published the consultation paper 
‘Transforming Rehabilitation’ which describes proposals for reforming the delivery 
of offender services in the community.  
 
West Mercia Police has formed a strategic alliance with Warwickshire Police, which 
looks to ensure that police services are delivered in an efficient and effective way; 
these arrangements are continuing to be to be developed and implemented.  
 
Changes to Public Health  
On 1 April 2013, Clinical Commissioning Groups became responsible authorities, 
replacing the former Primary Care Trust. There are two CCGs in North 
Worcestershire, Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG and Wyre Forest CCG 
 
The Worcestershire Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) became a statutory body 
from 1 April. The Board’s strategy and Public Health Outcomes Framework has 
clear links to the community safety and criminal justice agenda, which through our 
representation on the Safer Communities Board we will work to support their 
achievement.  
 
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, from 1 April 2013, Public Health 
functions became the responsibility of the top tier Local Authority and transferred 
to Worcestershire County Council. A new Health and Wellbeing Team, located 

Page 46



25 

 

within the newly created Adult Services and Health directorate, has been set up at 
Worcestershire County Council which will deliver community safety functions 
including the continued co-ordination of the Safer Communities Board.  
 
This year we have also seen changes within the drugs and alcohol arena with 
Worcestershire’s Drug and Alcohol Action Team being disbanded and the functions 
being absorbed within the Adult Services and Health directorate.   
 
 

Monitoring progress 
 
Measures of success help us monitor and track progress against targets and stated 
outcomes for each area. The action plans in this document describe the work 
planned to achieve outcomes. While the action plans presented only provide brief 
descriptions of the work planned, they are backed up by processes which monitor 
outputs, targets, milestones and timescales, and who is responsible for individual 
actions. Progress on key performance indicators related to the work in the Plan is 
reported to the NWCSP and the Safer Communities Board through the Policy and 
Commissioning Group.  

 
The partnership will receive regular scrutiny from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees established within each of the district and borough councils. The 
purpose of the committees is to review, scrutinise and make reports or 
recommendations to the responsible authorities of the CSP. These committees 
enable councils to hold the responsible authorities to account for local action and 
local public spending. They are a requirement for councils under the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  
 

 

Resources 
 
The North Worcestershire CSP has been awarded a grant from the PCC to deliver 
its plan. The funding will be used as outlined below and is for a one year period: 
 

Initiative Amount 

North Worcestershire Hate Incident Partnership £3,000 

Community Engagement, Consultation and Communications £5,000 

North Worcestershire Home Security Projects £6,000 

North Worcestershire CSP Analyst £30,000 

Safer Bromsgrove Tasking Group £25,994 

Safer Redditch Tasking Group £39,810 

Safer Wyre Forest Tasking Group £40,653 

Total £150,457 

Page 47



26 

 

Section 17 Responsibilities  
 
Community Safety Partnerships were established under the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 and Section 17 of this act is aimed at making the vital work of reducing crime 
a focus across the wide range of local services that authorities provide, putting 
community safety at the heart of local decision-making. 
 
Section 17 states that: 
 “Without prejudice to any other obligations imposed upon it, it shall be the duty 
of each authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely 
effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all it reasonably 
can to prevent crime and disorder in its area.”  
 
This recognises that each of the responsible authorities provides a wide and varied 
range of services and functions within the community.  As the level and impact of 
crime can be influenced by the decisions and actions taken in the day-to-day 
activities of these local bodies, the act places a duty on these authorities to do all 
they can to reasonably prevent crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour in their 
area. 
 
With changes to grant provision, reducing resources and competing priorities, 
Section 17 can provide a welcome opportunity for key partners to review core 
functions and service provision and ensure that community safety is embedded as a 
core aim in every service delivered.  Innovative and creative use of mainstream 
budgets to meet multiple aims that include crime and disorder reduction and 
prevention can directly benefit organisations, the Partnership and local 
communities by reducing duplicated effort and cost, whilst improving public 
services to create safer neighbourhoods. 
 
 

Community Engagement 
 
The partnership will continually seek to improve its engagement with the 
community. The partnership will publicise its work and raise awareness about the 
role of the partnership. We are committed to actively engaging our communities 
and responding to concerns, working together to resolve issues.  
 

  

Page 48



27 

 

Communications Strategy 
 
Channels of Communication 
 
§ It is suggested that the current communications channels (internal and 

external) available across North Worcestershire are mapped by the Community 
Safety Managers or equivalent across Bromsgrove, Redditch and Wyre Forest.  
 

§ The North Worcestershire CSP will agree the most appropriate communications 
channels to transmit key messages to its audiences. 

 
§ Possible channels include: 

- Publications e.g. newspapers, internal newsletters 
- Annual reports, business plans, research and evaluation reports 
- Media including TV and radio 
- Websites 
- Events 
- Word of mouth, public meetings, presentations, focus groups 
- Marketing materials e.g. leaflets, posters and brochures 

 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
§ In the interest of consistency and professionalism all communications will be 

co-ordinated through the Community Safety Managers, or equivalent, in 
conjunction with the Chairperson of the North Worcestershire CSP and/or the 
Chairperson of the Operational Groups, where appropriate. 
 

§ Community Safety Managers, or equivalent, will ensure that relevant partner 
agencies are given the opportunity to comment on all communications before 
general release. Partners will be asked to ensure they comment within a 
timely manner to ensure the release meets press deadlines.  
 

§ Partners will agree to share information and knowledge that may be of mutual 
benefit. 
 

§ Partners will agree to keep each other fully informed of any issues which may 
affect each other, for example press interest in a particular story.  
 

§ Partners will agree to notify each other of any campaigns, publications etc. 
which may be of mutual interest.   

 
 
Press Releases 
 
North Worcestershire 
§ All North Worcestershire CSP press releases must include a short quote from 

the Chairperson and, where appropriate and beneficial, additional quotes 
should be included from key partners. The NWCSP logo should be used in 
conjunction with the lead agency’s logo or branding. 

 
§ All press releases must be signed off by the Chairperson or the Vice 

Chairperson in advance of circulation for release. 

Page 49



28 

 

 
§ A draft copy of the press release should be sent to the Community Safety 

Managers, or equivalent, who will liaise with the North Worcestershire CSP 
Chairperson for endorsement.  
 

§ The Community Safety Managers, or equivalent, will then advise the partner(s) 
issuing the press release of any comments or additions that the Chairperson 
may wish to be considered for inclusion. 
 

§ Following any required revision, the partner(s) can then forward the press 
release to the local media, ensuring the Chairperson is advised of any photo-
call opportunity. 
 

§ Press releases must be issued on North Worcestershire CSP headed paper. 
 

§ A copy of the issued press release must be given to the Community Safety 
Managers, or equivalent, for file and adult purposes. 

 
District wide 
§ The Operational Groups may issue press releases where a project has solely 

been delivered in their respective district. Where this is the case a press 
release must include a quote from the North Worcestershire CSP Chairperson 
and the Operational Group Chairperson. Both parties must have signed off the 
press release before its circulation. The ‘Safer Bromsgrove/Redditch/Wyre 
Forest’ logos should be used in conjunction with the NWCSP logo/branding.  
 

§ All press releases must be signed off by the Chairperson or the Vice 
Chairperson in advance of circulation for release. 

 
§ A draft copy of the press release should be sent to the Community Safety 

Managers or equivalent who will liaise with the North Worcestershire CSP 
Chairperson and Operational Group Chairperson for endorsement.  

 
§ The Community Safety Managers or equivalent will then advise the partner(s) 

issuing the press release of any comments or additions that the Chairperson 
may wish to be considered for inclusion. 

 
§ Following any required revision, the partner(s) can then forward the press 

release to the local media, ensuring the Chairperson(s) are advised of any 
photo-call opportunity. 

 
§ Press releases must be issued on North Worcestershire CSP headed paper. 

 
§ A copy of the issued press release must be given to the Community Safety 

Managers or equivalent for file and adult purposes 
 
Resources 
 
§ The North Worcestershire CSP will agree the allocation of pooled resources for 

joint CSP communications activity. It is anticipated that North Worcestershire 
CSP projects will be identified at the beginning of the financial year, which 
will support forward planning of communications related activity. 

Page 50



29 

 

 
Branding and Marketing 
 
§ The North Worcestershire CSP has developed a logo to be used for all branding 

related activities.  
 

§ Operational Groups will use the North Worcestershire CSP logo in conjunction 
with the Safer Bromsgrove/Redditch/Wyre Forest logo, as appropriate.  

 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
§ A review of the communications strategy will be undertaken on an annual 

basis. 
 

§ All communications activities will be collated and reported on a quarterly basis 
to the North Worcestershire CSP. 

 
§ A process to evaluate the effectiveness of communication activities will be 

developed.  
 
Logos 
 
North Worcestershire 

 
 
Operational Groups 

     
  

Page 51



30 

 

Partners 
 
This section lists the organisations that are members of the NWCSP. Please follow 
the links for more information.  

 
Responsible Authorities 

 
Bromsgrove District 
Council 
 

 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 

 
Hereford and Worcester 
Fire and Rescue 
Authority 
 

 

http://www.hwfire.org.uk 
 
 

 
Redditch and 
Bromsgrove Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
 

 

http://www.redditchandbromsgroveccg.nhs.uk 
 

 
Redditch Borough 
Council 
 

 

www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
West Mercia Police 
 

 

www.westmercia.police.uk 
 

 
West Mercia Probation 
Trust 
 

 

www.westmerciaprobation.org.uk 
 

 
Worcestershire County 
Council 
 

 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
Wyre Forest Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
 

 

http://www.wyreforestccg.nhs.uk 

 
Wyre Forest District 
Council 
 

 

www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk 

 
  

Page 52



31 

 

Co-opted or Invited to Participate 

 
Magistrates Bench 
Chairs - Bromsgrove and 
Redditch, Kidderminster 
 

 
www.justice.gov.uk 
  
 

 
Chairs of the 
Operational Groups 
 

 
See www.nwcsp.org 
 

 
Chair of the North 
Worcestershire Hate 
Incident Partnership 
 

 
See www.nwcsp.org 

 

 
West Mercia Youth 
Offending Service 
 

 
 

 
HMP Hewell 
 

 
www.justice.gov.uk 
 

 
Portfolio Holders for 
Community Safety at 
Bromsgrove, Redditch 
and Wyre Forest 
Councils 
 

 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 
 
www.wyreforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Victim Support 
 

 
www.victimsupport.org.uk 
 

 
Worcestershire County 
Association of Local 
Councils 
 

 

www.worcscalc.org.uk 
 

 
Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services 
 

 

www.worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 

 
 
  

Page 53



32 

 

Contact Us 
 

Website 
www.nwcsp.org 

 
Postal Address 
Chair of NWCSP 

c/o Redditch Borough Council 
Redditch Town Hall 

Redditch 
Worcestershire 

B98 9AH 
 
 

 
 

Page 54



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t  
E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

1
s
t  
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 –
 3
0
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

 
T
h
is
 t
a
b
le
 o
u
tl
in
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 b
ro
k
e
n
 d
o
w
n
 b
y
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
 

ty
p
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
. 
 F
ig
u
re
s
 w
it
h
in
 b
ra
c
k
e
ts
 a
re
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r;
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
. 

 

 
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
A
L
 C
R
IM
E
 T
Y
P
E
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

F
ly
 

T
ip
p
in
g
 

F
ly
 

P
o
s
ti
n
g
 

D
o
g
 

F
o
u
li
n
g
 

G
ra
ff
it
i 

L
it
te
ri
n
g
 

T
ra
d
e
 

W
a
s
te
 

W
a
s
te
 

C
a
rr
ie
rs
 

L
ic
e
n
c
e
 

C
a
s
e
s
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 

3
5
 

(5
7
) 

2
6
 

(2
8
) 

5
 

(1
) 

1
 

(4
) 

1
7
 

(1
1
) 

4
 

(3
) 

3
 

(0
) 

9
1
 

(1
0
4
) 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

3
 

(7
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(1
) 

0
 

(0
) 

1
 

(0
) 

2
 

(0
) 

1
 

(0
) 

1
1
 

(8
) 

*
ENFORCEMENT 

OUTCOMES 

N
o
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

2
7
 

(4
5
) 

1
0
 

(6
) 

0
 

(0
) 

1
 

(4
) 

8
 

(6
) 

1
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

4
7
 

(6
1
) 

A
d
v
ic
e
 

3
 

(3
) 

0
 

(1
) 

5
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

1
 

(0
) 

1
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

1
0
 

(4
) 

V
e
rb
a
l 
W
a
rn
in
g
 

0
 

(1
) 

5
 

(2
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(2
) 

0
 

(2
) 

0
 

(0
) 

5
 

(7
) 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 W

a
rn
in
g
 

1
 

(0
) 

1
1
 

(1
7
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

3
 

(2
) 

0
 

(0
) 

1
 

(0
) 

1
6
 

(1
8
) 

F
P
N
 

1
 

(1
) 

0
 

(2
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

3
 

(0
) 

0
 

(1
) 

1
 

(0
) 

5
 

(6
) 

C
o
u
rt
 P
ro
c
e
e
d
in
g
s
 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

    
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   
  
  
  
  

*  E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a

n
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

t 
a

n
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
a

t 
th

e
 d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
e

v
e

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t.
  

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 n
o

t 
e

s
c
a

la
te

d
 i
n

c
re

m
e

n
ta

lly
. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 55



T
h
is
 t
a
b
le
 o
u
tl
in
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 v
e
h
ic
le
 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

th
o
s
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 F
ig
u
re
s
 w
it
h
in
 b
ra
c
k
e
ts
 a
re
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r;
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 

c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
. 

 A
B

A
N

D
O

N
E

D
 V

E
H

IC
L

E
S

 

C
a
s
e
s
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 

4
0
 

(1
7
) 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

4
 

(0
) 

E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

O
U

T
C

O
M

E
S

 

N
o
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

2
5
 

(1
7
) 

4
8
h
r 
N
o
ti
c
e
 I
s
s
u
e
d
 (
A
B
V
 O

n
ly
) 

1
1
 

(1
0
) 

R
e
m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 S
to
ra
g
e
 (
A
B
V
 o
n
ly
) 

3
 

(2
) 

  T
h
is
 t
a
b
le
 o
u
tl
in
e
s
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
a
id
. 
 

 F
IX
E
D
 P
E
N
A
L
T
Y
 N
O
T
IC
E
S
 

 
F
ly
 

T
ip
p
in
g
 

F
ly
 

P
o
s
ti
n
g
 
A
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 

V
e
h
ic
le
s
 

D
o
g
 

F
o
u
li
n
g
 
G
ra
ff
it
i 

L
it
te
ri
n
g
 
T
ra
d
e
 

W
a
s
te
 

W
a
s
te
 

C
a
rr
ie
rs
 

L
ic
e
n
c
e
 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

F
P

N
s
 

Is
s
u

e
d

 
1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

1
†
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

F
P

N
s
 P

a
id

 
1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
R

a
te

 
1
0
0
%
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

1
0
0
%
 

N
/A
 

0
%
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   
  
  
  
  

†
†
 T

h
is

 F
P

N
 f

o
r 

a
 w

a
s
te

 c
a

rr
ie

rs
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

 o
ff

e
n

c
e

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 u

n
p

a
id

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
lle

d
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

 u
n

d
e

r 
c
a

u
ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 

is
 t

a
k
e

n
. 

Page 56



 
 

1
 

 

B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 D
IS
T
R
IC
T
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 
O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
  

 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
  

  

  P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 T
A
S
K
 G
R
O
U
P
 –
 1
2
 M
O
N
T
H
 R
E
V
IE
W
 O
F
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

  1
. 

S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 

T
h
is
 R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n 
T
ra
ck
e
r 
lis
ts
 a
ll 
re
co
m
m
e
nd
a
tio
n
s 
m
a
d
e
 b
y 
th
e
 O

ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
cr
u
tin
y 
B
o
a
rd
 P
la
n
n
in
g 
P
o
lic
y 
T
a
sk
 

G
ro
u
p
.  

 

    2
. 

 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

   
T
ha
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 n
o
te
s 
th
e
 1
2
 M

o
n
th
 R
e
vi
e
w
 o
f 
R
e
co
m
m
en
d
a
tio
n
s 
an
d
 a
gr
e
e
s 
to
 t
h
e
 r
em

ov
a
l o
f 
a
n
y 
ite
m
s 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
ve
 b
e
e
n 

co
m
p
le
te
d
, 
w
ith
 t
h
e 
o
ut
st
a
nd
in
g 
ite
m
s 
b
e
in
g 
p
la
ce
d 
o
n
 th
e 
Q
ua
rt
e
rly
 R
e
co
m
m
e
n
da
tio
n 
T
ra
ck
e
r.
. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 57



 
 

2
 

  D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 1
 

(a
) 
w
h
e
re
 c
o
n
d
iti
on
s 
h
a
ve
 b
e
en
 a
tta
ch
e
d
 

to
 a
 p
la
nn
in
g 
a
pp
lic
a
tio
n
 a
nd
 

m
o
n
ito
rin
g 
is
 r
e
qu
ire
d
 th
e
n
 th
e 

P
la
n
n
in
g 
an
d
 E
nf
o
rc
em

e
nt
 t
ea
m
 

sh
o
u
ld
 a
llo
w
 f
o
r 
th
is
 to
 b
e
 d
is
ch
a
rg
e
d
 

fu
lly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
qu
ire
d 
le
ve
l o
f 
d
e
ta
il 
th
at
 

th
e
 c
o
n
d
iti
on
(s
) 
sp
e
ci
fy
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
ir 

w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
is
 s
ho
u
ld
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
ut
, 

irr
e
sp
e
ct
iv
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
st
, 
to
 e
n
su
re
 

th
a
t t
h
e 
co
nd
iti
o
n
s 
a
re
 m
e
t a
nd
 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
, e
nf
o
rc
e
d
; 

(b
) 
(b
) 
 t
h
e
 a
pp
lic
a
n
t b
e
 m
a
d
e 
a
w
a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
a
rli
e
st
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 s
ta
ge
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
ed
 t
o 

e
n
su
re
 th
at
 t
he
se
 c
o
nd
iti
o
n
s 
a
re
 

a
d
he
re
d
 to
 a
n
d
 p
ro
pe
rly
 m
o
n
ito
re
d 
in
 

lin
e
 w
ith
 t
h
e
 c
on
d
iti
on
s 
a
p
p
lie
d
; 
an
d 

  
  
 (
c)
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e 
p
la
n
n
in
g 
of
fic
e
r 

re
co
m
m
en
d
s 
re
fu
sa
l o
f 
a
 p
la
n
n
in
g 

a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
 a
n
d
 th
e 
P
la
n
n
in
g 

C
o
m
m
itt
ee
 g
o
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e
 

re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
, s
uf
fic
ie
n
t 
tim

e
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g 

C
o
m
m
itt
ee
 M
e
e
tin
g 
to
 d
is
cu
ss
 

co
n
d
iti
on
s.
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t c
om

m
e
n
ts
: 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 1
(a
) 
a
s 
am

e
nd
ed
 w
a
s 
n
o
te
d
. 
It
 

w
a
s 
st
ill
 f
e
lt 
ho
w
e
ve
r 
th
e
re
 s
ho
u
ld
 b
e 
a
 m
e
ch
a
n
is
m
 

w
h
e
re
b
y 
P
la
n
n
in
g 
of
fic
e
rs
 w
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
su
lt 
in
 a
dv
a
n
ce
 

w
ith
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
n
ce
 D
ep
ar
tm
e
nt
 r
e
ga
rd
in
g 
th
e 
lik
e
ly
 

co
st
s 
of
 e
nf
o
rc
in
g 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
co
nd
iti
o
n
s 
a
n
d 
th
e
 

a
va
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
 b
u
d
ge
t t
o
 m
e
e
t t
he
se
. I
n
 a
d
d
iti
o
n
 it
 

w
a
s 
qu
e
rie
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
fin
a
n
ci
a
l c
o
n
st
ra
in
ts
 o
n
 th
e
 

A
u
th
o
rit
y 
o
r 
th
e
 a
p
p
lic
an
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e 
a
 v
a
lid
 

co
n
si
d
e
ra
tio
n
 w
h
e
n
 d
et
e
rm

in
in
g 
a
 p
la
nn
in
g 

a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
. 

 
T
he
 P
o
rt
fo
lio
 H
o
ld
e
r 
fo
r 
P
la
n
n
in
g 
un
d
e
rt
o
o
k 
to
 

d
is
cu
ss
 t
h
is
 fu
rt
he
r 
w
ith
 t
he
 r
e
le
va
n
t o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 

 R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
1
(b
) 
a
n
d
 1
(c
) 
a
gr
e
e
d
. 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

b
) 
a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 a
w
a
re
 a
t 
th
e
 e
a
rl
ie
s
t 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 s
ta
g
e
. 
 A
n
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 a
d
h
e
re
d
 t
o
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 i
n
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 o
n
 a
ll 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

c
) 
T
h
is
 o
c
c
u
rs
 a
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
r 
is
 

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

Page 58



 
 

3
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 2
 

(a
) 
  
  
 th
a
t a
 r
e
vi
e
w
 o
f 
th
e
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

S
ta
nd
a
rd
 P
la
nn
in
g 
C
o
n
d
iti
o
n
s 
b
e
 

ca
rr
ie
d
 o
ut
 a
s 
so
o
n 
a
s 
p
ra
ct
ic
a
b
ly
 

p
o
ss
ib
le
, b
u
t w

ith
in
 s
ix
 m

o
nt
h
s 
of
 

th
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
e
in
g 
p
re
se
n
te
d 
to
 th
e 

C
a
b
in
e
t; 
a
nd
 

(b
) 

th
a
t P

la
nn
in
g 
of
fic
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g 
b
e
 

fo
rm

a
lis
ed
 t
o 
e
n
su
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 

co
n
d
iti
on
s 
a
re
 id
e
nt
ifi
ed
 f
o
r 

ro
u
tin
e
 a
nd
 n
o
n
-r
o
u
tin
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
s.
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
ts
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 2
 

(a
) 
a
gr
e
e
d 

(b
) 
th
is
 w
a
s 
a
gr
e
e
d
 b
u
t 
in
 a
d
d
iti
on
 it
 w
a
s 
fe
lt 
th
at
 a
 

su
ita
b
le
 le
ve
l o
f 
M
em

be
r 
tr
a
in
in
g 
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
ga
rd
 

sh
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 u
n
de
rt
ak
e
n
 to
 a
ss
is
t 
M
em

b
e
rs
 in
 

u
n
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
th
e 
a
pp
ro
p
ria
te
ne
ss
 o
f 
co
nd
iti
o
n
s.
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 J
a
n
ua
ry
 2
0
1
3 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

a
) 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 b
u
t 

n
o
t 
y
e
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
. 

b
) 
T
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

d
ra
ft
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 l
is
t.
 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 3
 

It
 is
 r
e
co
gn
is
e
d 
th
a
t 
on
 o
cc
a
si
on
 t
he
re
 

w
ill
 b
e
 n
e
ed
 fo
r 
so
m
e
 fo
rm

 o
f 
co
m
m
u
n
ity
 

e
n
ga
ge
m
en
t f
o
r 
e
xa
m
p
le
 a
 p
u
b
lic
 

m
e
et
in
g(
s)
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 a
ct
 a
s 
a 
fo
ru
m
 to
 

im
p
ro
ve
 li
n
e
s 
of
 c
om

m
u
n
ic
a
tio
n
 a
n
d
 is
 to
 

b
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
e
d 
b
et
w
e
e
n 
se
n
io
r 
of
fic
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 r
e
si
d
e
nt
s 
in
 r
e
sp
ec
t 
of
 la
rg
e
r 
m
o
re
 

co
m
p
le
x 
p
la
n
n
in
g 
ap
p
lic
a
tio
n
s.
  T

h
is
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
ts
 

A
gr
e
e
d
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 o
n
go
in
g 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
is
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
, 
re
c
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 H
a
g
le
y
 a
n
d
 a
t 
W
h
it
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
. 

Page 59



 
 

4
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 r
e
co
m
m
e
nd
a
tio
n
 f
ro
m
 th
e
 

P
la
n
n
in
g 
C
om

m
itt
e
e 
an
d
 r
e
vi
e
w
e
d
 

p
e
rio
d
ic
a
lly
 b
y 
th
a
t 
C
om

m
itt
e
e.
  

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 4
 

T
ha
t 
a 
d
et
a
ile
d 
re
vi
e
w
 o
f 
th
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g 

E
nf
o
rc
em

en
t P

o
lic
y,
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s 
a
d
op
te
d
 

in
 A
p
ril
 2
01
1
 (
a
s 
e
n
co
ur
a
ge
d
 in
 S
e
ct
io
n
 

8
 –
 C
on
cl
u
si
o
n
),
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
gi
vi
n
g 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
a
tte
nt
io
n
 to
 S
e
ct
io
n
s 
4
 –
 

E
nf
o
rc
em

en
t P

ro
ce
du
re
s 
(I
nf
o
rm

a
l) 
an
d
 

7
 –
 C
ou
n
ci
l’s
 C
om

m
itm

e
nt
 t
o 

C
o
m
p
la
in
a
nt
s.
 

 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n 

go
in
g 
tr
a
n
sf
o
rm

a
tio
n 
pr
o
ce
ss
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 o
c
c
u
r,
 i
f 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
, 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 5
 

T
ha
t 
a
 
ca
se
 
of
fic
e
r 
b
e
 
ap
p
o
in
te
d
 
a
nd
 

re
m
a
in
 
re
sp
on
si
b
le
 
a
s 

th
e
 
p
o
in
t 

of
 

co
n
ta
ct
 
fo
r 
ea
ch
 
en
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
ca
se
 
to
 

e
n
su
re
 c
on
tin
u
ity
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
le
ct
ro
n
ic
 c
a
se
 

fil
e
 
be
 
se
t 
u
p
 
an
d
 
o
p
en
 
to
 
vi
e
w
 
b
y 

co
lle
a
gu
e
s 
an
d
 m
an
a
ge
m
en
t. 

 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n 

go
in
g 
tr
a
n
sf
o
rm

a
tio
n 
pr
o
ce
ss
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 a
 c
a
s
e
 i
n
 i
ts
 e
n
ti
re
ty
 i
s
 m
o
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 n
o
w
 h
a
p
p
e
n
s
. 

Page 60



 
 

5
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 6
 

T
ha
t 
a 
m
e
ch
a
n
is
m
 b
e 
p
u
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 t
o 

e
n
su
re
 th
at
 e
nf
o
rc
em

en
t 
ca
se
s 
a
re
 

re
co
rd
e
d 
a
nd
 r
e
gu
la
rly
 u
p
 d
a
te
d
 w
ith
 a
 

a
u
d
it 
tr
a
il 
of
 a
ct
io
n
s 
a
nd
 d
o
cu
m
e
n
ts
 a
nd
 

co
rr
e
sp
o
nd
e
n
ce
 o
n
 th
e 
e
le
ct
ro
n
ic
 

sy
st
e
m
 a
cc
e
ss
ib
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 C
ou
n
ci
l’s
 

‘O
rb
’. 

 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
) 

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n 

go
in
g 
tr
a
n
sf
o
rm

a
tio
n 
pr
o
ce
ss
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

C
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
a
lly
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 “
s
h
a
re
d
” 
fo
ld
e
r,
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 

o
f 
th
e
m
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 f
o
r 
th
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 O
rb
. 

 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 7
 

T
ha
t 
th
e
 P
la
nn
in
g 
C
o
m
m
itt
ee
 r
e
ce
iv
e
s 
a
 

qu
a
rt
e
rly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 in
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
a
ll 
ne
w
 a
n
d
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
p
la
n
n
in
g 
en
fo
rc
em

en
t 

ca
se
s.
 

 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 J
a
n
ua
ry
 2
0
1
3 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
is
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 o
n
 a
 6
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 

 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 8
 

T
ha
t 
th
o
ro
u
gh
 t
h
e 
T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n
 

p
ro
gr
a
m
m
e
 a
 r
e
vi
e
w
 a
n
d
 m
a
pp
in
g 

e
xe
rc
is
e
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t i
n
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
th
e
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Page 61



 
 

6
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

p
ro
ce
ss
 p
o
st
 p
la
nn
in
g 
a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
 

a
p
p
ro
va
l s
ta
ge
 a
n
d 
th
at
 t
h
e 
re
su
lts
 o
f 

th
is
 b
e 
sh
a
re
d
 w
ith
 t
h
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
cr
u
tin
y 
B
o
a
rd
. 

 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 th
is
 w
ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n 

go
in
g 
tr
a
n
sf
o
rm

a
tio
n 
pr
o
ce
ss
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
t 
th
e
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
ta
g
e
. 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 9
 

T
ha
t 
th
e
 In
te
rn
a
l A

u
d
it 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

re
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
s 
b
e
 s
u
p
po
rt
e
d
 a
nd
 

in
cl
u
d
e
d 
w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
cr
u
tin
y 
B
o
a
rd
’s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
rly
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 T
ra
ck
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
 to
 

e
n
su
re
 th
at
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 o
n
 t
he
 

im
p
le
m
e
nt
a
tio
n
 is
 m
o
n
ito
re
d
 in
 a
n 

a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 a
n
d 
tim

e
ly
 m
a
nn
e
r.
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 w
ith
 im

m
e
d
ia
te
 e
ff
e
ct
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a
t 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 o
f 
th
e
 t
ra
c
k
e
r.
 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 1
0 

T
ha
t 
a 
qu
a
rt
e
rly
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
e
 m
a
de
 

a
va
ila
b
le
 t
o
 th
e
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
cr
u
tin
y 

B
o
a
rd
 to
 e
n
ab
le
 M
em

be
rs
 a
n
d 
of
fic
e
rs
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
re
p
ea
t o
r 
co
m
m
on
 t
he
m
e
d
 

co
m
p
lim

e
nt
s 
an
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 (
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

a
d
d
re
ss
 s
u
ch
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
).
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 w
o
rk
 a
lre
a
d
y 
im
p
le
m
en
te
d.
 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

In
 p
la
c
e
  

  

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 1
1 

T
ha
t 

a
ll 

H
e
ad
s 

of
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
e
n
su
re
 
4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
) 

 
A
p
ril
 

 

Page 62



 
 

7
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

2
0
12
 

m
e
ch
a
n
is
m
s 
a
re
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 t
o
 e
n
su
re
 t
ha
t 

w
h
e
n
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
qu
e
st
 e
sc
a
la
te
s 
to
 t
he
 

e
xt
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s 
o
r 
co
u
ld
 b
e
 a
 c
rit
ic
a
l 

fa
ilu
re
 

of
 

a
n
y 

n
at
u
re
, 

th
e
y 

a
re
 

im
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 m

a
d
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 s
itu
at
io
n 

a
n
d
  

(a
) 
th
a
t 
H
ea
d
s 
of
 S

e
rv
ic
e
 e
n
su
re
 

a
ll 
st
a
ff
 
a
re
 
m
ad
e
 
aw

a
re
 
o
f 

a
n
d
 u
nd
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e 
de
fin
iti
o
n
s 

of
 a
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t; 
an
d 

(b
) 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
H
e
ad
 
of
 
C
u
st
om

e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
vi
d
e
s 

ad
d
iti
o
na
l 

gu
id
a
n
ce
 

in
 

re
sp
e
ct
 

of
 

re
co
rd
in
g 

se
rv
ic
e
 

re
qu
e
st
s 

w
h
ic
h
 
m
a
y 

a
ls
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
va
lid
 

co
m
p
la
in
t. 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 w
o
rk
 a
lre
a
d
y 
co
m
m
en
ce
d
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 -
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
C
M
T
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
. 

H
O
S
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 

o
n
 i
C
a
s
e
 b
y
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 

T
e
a
m
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

1
0
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
12
 

R
e
co
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 1
2 

T
ha
t 
th
e
 H
ea
d
 o
f 
C
u
st
o
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d 

H
u
m
an
 
R
e
so
u
rc
e
s 

w
o
rk
 
to
ge
th
e
r 

to
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
 
a
 
m
a
nd
a
to
ry
 
m
a
n
a
ge
m
en
t 

tr
a
in
in
g 
p
ro
gr
a
m
m
e
 to
: 

(a
) 
e
n
su
re
 
th
a
t 
a
ll 
m
an
ag
e
rs
 
o
f 

th
e
 C
ou
n
ci
l 
a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 s
u
p
po
rt
 

to
 
en
ab
le
 
th
em

 
to
 
re
sp
on
d
, 

b
o
th
 v
e
rb
a
lly
 a
n
d
 in
 w
ri
tin
g,
 t
o 

a
ll 
cu
st
om

e
rs
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 a
n
d
 

4
th
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2 

Ju
ly
 

 
O
ct
 

√ 
Ja
n
 

(2
0
1
4
)  

 
A
p
ril
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t C

o
m
m
en
t: 

A
gr
e
e
d 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio
n
 d
a
te
 –
 w
o
rk
 a
lre
a
d
y 
co
m
m
en
ce
d
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
h
a
n
d
lin
g
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

a
n
d
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
 s
k
ill
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

Page 63



 
 

8
 

 D
a
te
 o
f 
O
&
S
 

B
o
a
rd
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

D
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
(s
) 

a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
 

m
a
nn
e
r,
 

w
ith
 

re
gu
la
r 

re
vi
e
w
s 

o
f 

th
e
 

su
cc
e
ss
 

of
 

su
ch
 

tr
a
in
in
g 

ca
rr
ie
d
 o
ut
; 
an
d 

(b
) 
th
e
 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
S
cr
u
tin
y 

B
o
a
rd
 

re
ce
iv
e 

re
gu
la
r 

u
p
da
te
s 

to
 
e
n
su
re
 
th
is
 
h
a
s 

b
e
en
 im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
c
a
s
e
s
. 
  

 O
n
 g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
h
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
. 
 C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
d
 v
ia
 

o
u
r 
o
n
lin
e
 N
e
tc
o
n
s
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
. 
T
h
is
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 

a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 t
o
 a
d
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 c
e
rt
a
in
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
lo
g
 o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

  
 

Page 64



 
 

9
 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 1
 

 IN
T
E
R
N
A
L
 A
U
D
IT
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 –
 A
d
 H
o
c
 I
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
: 
M
a
rl
b
ro
o
k
 T
ip
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
1
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g 
A
p
p
ro
va
l 

W
he
re
 a
 p
la
nn
in
g 
a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
 m
a
y 
re
su
lt 
in
 t
he
 a
pp
ro
va
l 

in
cl
u
d
in
g 
a
 s
ig
n
ifi
ca
n
t n
u
m
b
e
r 
of
 c
on
d
iti
on
s,
 th
a
t t
h
e
 

P
la
n
n
in
g 
C
om

m
itt
e
e 
is
 m
ad
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f:
 

•
 
th
e
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
n
e
ed
ed
 to
 e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
ly
 m
o
n
ito
r 

co
m
p
lia
n
ce
; 

•
 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 a
re
 s
u
ita
b
ly
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 a
n
d
/o
r 

e
xp
e
rie
n
ce
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
ith
in
 t
he
 C
o
un
ci
l; 
an
d
  

•
 
if 
n
o
t, 
w
h
a
t 
o
ut
so
u
rc
in
g 
a
rr
a
n
ge
m
e
nt
s 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
qu
ire
d
. 

 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
20
13
 

W
he
re
 t
he
re
 a
re
 c
o
n
ce
rn
s 
a
b
ou
t 
ca
p
a
ci
ty
 in
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
p
la
nn
in
g,
 t
he
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 n
e
ed
 to
 r
a
is
e
 th
e
se
 c
or
p
o
ra
te
ly
 w
ith
 a
gr
e
e
m
en
t 
to
 

go
 t
h
ro
u
gh
 th
e
 p
ro
ce
du
re
 t
o
 a
tte
m
p
t 
to
 s
e
cu
re
 e
xt
ra
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s.
 

 
2
. 
 M
o
n
ito
rin
g 
A
rr
a
n
ge
m
en
ts
 

T
ha
t f
o
r 
a
n
y 
fu
tu
re
 s
im
ila
r 
d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
nd
 in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

p
ro
vi
d
e
 c
le
a
r 
a
cc
ou
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 m
o
n
ito
rin
g 
sh
ou
ld
 b
e
 

u
n
de
rt
a
ke
n
 b
y 
of
fic
e
rs
 a
n
d
/o
r 
a
 g
ro
u
p 
w
ith
 s
u
ita
b
le
 

e
xp
e
rie
n
ce
 a
n
d
 e
xp
e
rt
is
e
 a
nd
 th
e
 a
u
th
o
rit
y 
to
 m
a
ke
 

d
e
ci
si
o
n
s.
 

 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
20
13
 

W
he
n 
th
e
 n
e
ed
 a
ris
e
s 
th
e
 H
ea
d
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 e
n
su
re
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
a
re
 

a
va
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
th
is
 t
o
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
. 

 

Page 65



 
 

1
0

 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
3
. 
E
nf
o
rc
em

en
t A

ct
io
n 

T
ha
t 
w
h
e
re
 a
 d
e
ve
lo
pm

e
nt
 is
 c
on
si
d
e
re
d
 u
nu
su
a
l (
fo
r 

e
xa
m
p
le
, d
ue
 t
o 
si
ze
, 
lo
n
ge
vi
ty
) 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

e
nf
o
rc
em

e
n
t a
ct
io
n 
is
 a
llo
ca
te
d
 t
o 
a
 n
am

ed
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
ro
vi
d
e
 a
 s
in
gl
e
 p
o
in
t 
of
 c
on
ta
ct
. 

 It
 is
 a
ck
no
w
le
d
ge
d
 t
h
at
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 le
a
ve
 t
h
e
 C
o
un
ci
l’s
 

e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t o
r 
m
a
y 
n
ot
 b
e
 a
va
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
w
h
a
ts
o
e
ve
r 

re
a
so
n
; h
o
w
e
ve
r,
 in
 s
uc
h
 in
st
an
ce
s 
h
a
nd
o
ve
r 
of
 

re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
ak
e
 p
la
ce
. 

 

  S
e
e
 R
e
co
m
m
e
n
da
tio
n 
5
 o
f 
th
e 
m
a
in
 r
ep
o
rt
. 
 A
n
 o
ff
ic
er
 n
o
w
 d
e
a
ls
 w
ith
 a
 

ca
se
 in
 it
s 
e
nt
ire
ty
 a
n
d
 a
n
 e
le
ct
ro
n
ic
 s
ys
te
m
 is
 in
 p
la
ce
. 

 
4
. 
C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
H
an
d
lin
g 

T
ha
t 
of
fic
e
rs
 a
re
 p
ro
vi
d
e
d
 w
ith
 t
ra
in
in
g 
to
 r
e
co
gn
is
e 
a
 

co
m
p
la
in
t a
n
d 
e
n
su
re
 th
a
t 
th
e
se
 a
re
 h
an
d
le
d 
u
til
is
in
g 

th
e
 C
u
st
om

e
r 
fe
e
db
a
ck
 d
a
ta
b
a
se
. 

 

  T
h
is
 h
a
s 
b
e
en
 a
ct
io
n
 a
s 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 in
 R
e
co
m
m
en
d
a
tio
n
 1
1
 o
f 
th
e
 m
a
in
 

re
p
o
rt
 a
b
o
ve
. 

 
5
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
s 

T
ha
t 
th
e
 C
ou
n
ci
l g
iv
e
s 
co
n
si
d
e
ra
tio
n
 to
 p
ro
vi
d
in
g 

u
p
da
te
s 
to
 r
e
si
de
n
ts
. 

It
 is
 a
ck
no
w
le
d
ge
d
 t
h
at
 s
u
ch
 c
o
m
m
un
ic
a
tio
n
s 
h
a
ve
 a
 

co
st
; 
ho
w
e
ve
r,
 t
h
is
 m
ay
 b
e
 o
u
tw
e
ig
h
e
d
 b
y 
th
e
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n 

in
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 

 

  S
e
e
 R
e
co
m
m
e
n
da
tio
n 
3
 o
f 
th
e 
m
a
in
 r
ep
o
rt
. 
 M
e
e
tin
gs
 w
ith
in
 t
h
e
 

co
m
m
un
ity
 h
a
ve
 t
a
ke
n 
p
la
ce
 in
 r
e
sp
e
ct
 o
f 
se
ve
ra
l l
a
rg
e 
p
la
nn
in
g 

a
p
p
lic
a
tio
n
s.
 

 

 

Page 66



Cabinet Response to the  
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group Air Quality Report 

 
Introduction 
 
At the Cabinet meeting on 2nd October 2013 consideration was given to the 
report of the Air Quality Task Group. As the Chairman of the Task Group, 
Councillor S.P. Shannon was unable to be present, the Leader welcomed the 
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Board , Councillor  P. Lammas to the 
meeting and invited him to introduce the report.  
 
Councillor Lammas referred to the recommendations of the Task Group which 
were contained within 5 chapters within  the report: 
 

• The review of the Air Quality Scrutiny report completed in December 2007 

• The role of Worcestershire Regulatory Services 

• The role of Worcestershire County Council 

• Health implications; and 

• Conclusion 
 
The Cabinet then discussed and considered each of the recommendations in 
detail.  
 
Response to recommendations 
 
Please find below responses to the recommendations contained within the 
scrutiny report: 
.    
Recommendation 1 
 
(Arising from the 2007 report) 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission Zones 
Further consideration be given for LEZs to be included within the Air Quality 
Action Plan. 
 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre Redevelopment 
A representative from Worcestershire Regulatory Services to be included within 
the membership of the Town Centre Redevelopment Group. 
 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and The Strand 
Although not declared as an Air Quality Management Area the continued 
monitoring of the air quality at Davenal House should take place and 
consideration be given to alterations to the traffic lights. 
 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Ranks  

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



Regular reminders to taxi drivers in respect of leaving their engines running 
whilst waiting for the next fare at a taxi rank. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
Recommendation 1 – Low Emission Zones 
This was not supported in view of the likely finance implications. 
 
Recommendation 7 – Town Centre Redevelopment 
It was reported that the Town Centre Redevelopment Group was no longer in 
existence. 
 
Recommendation 8 – High Street and The Strand 
It was noted that monitoring was on going but it was felt that changes to the 
traffic lights would be costly at this stage.   
 
Recommendation 17 – Taxi Rank 
This was approved. 
  
Recommendation 2 
 
(a) that separate Air Quality Action Plans be produced for the four AQMAs in 

Bromsgrove district in order to address the particular circumstances in 
each location 

 
(b) that the Action plans contain specific targets and detail projected 

timeframes and all actions should be implemented within those timescales  
 
Cabinet Response 
 
This was not agreed as it was felt that the overall County Air Quality Action Plan 
would be sufficient. 
 
Recommendation 3 
 
That a separate Air Quality Steering Group should be established in respect of 
the four AQMAs in Bromsgrove district. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
It was not agreed that a separate Group was required as it was felt that the single 
Steering Group would be sufficient.  
 
 
 
 

Page 68



Recommendation 4  
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Board be provided with regular progress reports 
from the Air Quality Steering Group.  
 
Cabinet Response 
 
This is not applicable if the separate Steering Group is not set up. It was 
suggested as an alternative that the Annual report to DEFRA also be submitted 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Board at no additional cost. 
 
Recommendation 5 
 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) applies for funding from the DEFRA 
Air Quality Grant Programme. If the first application is not successful the WRS 
should persist in submitting further applications in subsequent years. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
It was agreed that WRS should apply for DEFRA funding as appropriate and in 
accordance with the Air Quality Action Plan.  
 
Recommendation 6 
 
That Worcestershire County Council applies for funding from the Worcestershire 
Local Transport Body in order to fund traffic management measures that will 
tackle air pollution in the Bromsgrove AQMAs. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
Whilst this is a matter for the County Council there is no objection to requesting 
the County Council to make the application. 
 
Recommendation 7 
 
That Worcestershire County Council liaises with local bus operators to establish 
a local bus quality partnership in order to investigate the potential to update the 
bus fleets operating within the Bromsgrove district. 
 
Cabinet Response  
 
Whilst this is a matter for the County Council there is no objection to requesting 
the County Council to liaise with the relevant bus operators. 
 
 
 

Page 69



Recommendation 8 
 
That the health implications of air pollution be the focus of a detailed review by 
the Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
Cabinet Response 
 
It was noted that discussions were on going and that there was no objection to 
the issue being raised by the District Councillors who were Members of the 
Worcestershire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
Recommendation 9   
 
That the regular monitoring of particulate air pollutants within the Bromsgrove 
District’s four AQMAs is carried out by Worcestershire Regulatory Services. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
This was not agreed in view of the significant cost implications.    
 
 Recommendation 10 
 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends a letter to the relevant Government 
Minister urging him/her to accelerate efforts to address problems with the higher 
emission levels from HGVs with a copy of the letter also being sent to the local 
M.P. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
This recommendation was agreed. 
 
Recommendation 11 
 
That Bromsgrove District Council sends a letter to the relevant Government 
Minister responsible for DEFRA urging him/her to review the role of those 
responsible for Air Quality with a copy of the letter also being sent to the local 
M.P. 
 
Cabinet Response 
 
This recommendation was agreed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



Recommendation 12 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board consider launching a separate review of CO2 
emissions in the District.  
 
Cabinet Response 
 
It was felt this was a matter for the Overview and Scrutiny Board to determine as 
part of their future Work Programme.  
 
The Leader thanked the Task Group Chairman and Members for their work in 
producing the report. 
 
 
Councillor Kit Taylor – Portfolio Holder for Planning, Core Strategy and 
Regulatory Services 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 18th November 2013 

 
 
SCRUTINY INVESTIGATION PROPOSAL 
  

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Mike Webb 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  No 

Relevant Head of Service for 
Overview and Scrutiny 

Claire Felton – Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic Services 

Wards Affected All wards 

Ward Councillor Consulted No – not at this stage 

Non-Key Decision  

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to Ground 

Maintenance Work Carried Out for Bromsgrove District Housing Trust 
has been completed by Councillor H. J. Jones and is submitted for 
consideration by the Board. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That the Board considers the completed proposal form (at Appendix 1) 

and agrees to one of the following: 
 
(a) that further information be requested from a relevant source 

before deciding whether or not further investigation is required;  
(b) that the topic is included on the work programme for further 

investigation at a future date; 
(c) that the topic is included on the work programme and a Task 

Group is established to undertake a more in-depth investigation, 
with the appointment of a Chairman for the Task Group; or 

(d) take no further action. 
  
 

3. KEY ISSUES 
 
 Financial Implications    

 
3.1 There are no financial implications directly relating to this report, 

however, if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be 
considered as part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

3.2 There are no legal implications directly relating to this report, however, 
if the proposal is accepted, any implications would be considered as 
part of the subsequent investigation undertaken. 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 18th November 2013 

 
 Service/Operation Implications 
 
3.3 An Overview and Scrutiny Topic Proposal Form relating to Ground 

Maintenance Work Carried Out for Bromsgrove District Housing Trust 
has been completed by Councillor H. J. Jones. 

 
3.4 If the Board decides that it does wish to investigate this topic further, it 

then needs to decide whether it is appropriate for the Board itself to 
undertake the investigation or whether a more in-depth investigation is 
required and a task group established. 

 
3.5 Another option is for the Board to request further information on the 

topic from a relevant source to assist Members in deciding whether an 
investigation is required. 

 
3.6 Alternatively, the Board could decide that it is not a topic it wishes to 
 investigate, in which case no further action would be required.    
 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
3.7 N/A 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
4.1 N/A 

 
5. APPENDICES 

 
 Appendix 1 – Overview and Scrutiny Proposal Form  
   
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

7. KEY 
 
None 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: Amanda Scarce – Democratic Services Officer 
E Mail: a.scarce@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Tel: 01527 881443 

Page 74



 

Please return completed forms to:  Committee Section, 
Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services, Bromsgrove District Council 
Email: scrutiny@bromsgrove.gov.uk 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TOPIC PROPOSAL 

 
 
Name of Proposer:  Councillor Helen Jones 
Tel No: 07758103795                       Email:  h.jones@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Date:  25th October 2013 
 

Title of Proposed Topic: Work Carried out by BDC for BDHT 

 

Specific subject areas to be 
investigated: 

Investigate the work carried out by the Landscaping and 
Cleansing Team on behalf of BDHT and whether the cost of this is 
recharged. 

 

Reasons why this subject 
should be considered: 

Value for money and possible savings to the Council. 

 

Evidence to support the 
need for this particular 
investigation: 

The work of the teams in question has been observed and it is 
understood that the cost of the work carried out is not charged to 
BDHT. 

 

Strategic Purposes it links 
to: 

Place and Housing 

 

Possible key outcomes: 
(i.e. what do you anticipate 
could be achieved?) 

BDHT carrying out the work that it is responsible for in order to 
enable Council employees to concentrate on their priorities. 

 
Please indicate if any of the following apply to the proposed subject 
area: 

CRITERIA N
O

 

Y
E

S
 

Why? 

Is it a priority issue for the Council or the 
Local Strategic Partnership?   

X 
  

Is it an important issue for local residents?  
X 

The current situation can cause 
delays to the work being carried 
out. 

Is it a topic where Overview and Scrutiny 
could feasibly and constructively make 
recommendations?   

 
X 

The investigation could lead to 
savings for the Council. 

Is it a topic where external review would 
be helpful? 

X 
  

Is it a topic where a review could be made 
in time to make recommendations for the 
executive decision making process?   

 
X  

Is it a poorly performing service?     N/A 

Is it a review that could render significant 
savings or value for money?   

 X  

Is the topic strategic in scope?   X   

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) Joint Scrutiny Task Group: 

Update 

The latest meeting of the Task Group took place at Bromsgrove Council 

House on Tuesday 22nd October 2013. 

The Task Group received a presentation from Steve Jorden, Head of 

Worcestershire Regulatory Services.   The presentation covered questions 

raised by the Task Group in respect of its terms of reference and also gave 

Members background information on the introduction and work of WRS.  

Members had also provided 10 detailed questions to which Steve provided a 

written response.  Ffollowing the presentation Steve responded to both 

questions leading from the presentation and his written responses. 

Members found the session most informative and agreed that they would 

discuss the information further at the next meeting (12th November) and agree 

further questions for future witnesses.  The Task Group will also observe the 

Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee meeting on 21st November 

followed by an interview with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 

Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



- 
1
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
4
th
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

 

IT
E
M
 

G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 C
O
M
M
E
N
T
S
 

A
C
T
IO
N
 

O
F
F
IC
E
R
  

D
E
A
L
IN
G
 

 

D
A
T
E
 

R
E
Q
U
IR
E
D
  

B
Y
 

 

R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 

P
R
O
V
ID
E
D
 

A
N
D
 D
A
T
E
 

P
R
O
V
ID
E
D
 

T
h
e
re
 w

e
re
 n
o
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

O
/s
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 1
6
th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

It
e
m
 4
 –
 U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e
 T
o
w
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 P
u
b
li
c
 R
e
a
lm
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 S
e
n
io
r 
P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

(a
) 
 B
ri
c
k
 w

o
rk
 (
a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie
d
 b
y
 C

llr
 

R
o
ry
 S
h
a
n
n
o
n
) 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

s
n
a
g
g
in
g
 l
is
t.
 

(b
) 
C
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

W
C
C
 w

ill
 b
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
re
-

s
e
a
lin

g
 t
h
e
 

fo
o
tp
a
th
s
 a
n
d
 

e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 o
f 

s
a
m
e
. 

(c
) 
T
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
lif
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

D
o
lp
h
in
 C

e
n
tr
e
. 

S
e
n
io
r 
P
ro
je
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 (R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 f
o
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 e
m
a
ile

d
 

to
 2
5
/0
9
/1
3
 

re
m
in
d
e
r 
s
e
n
t 

1
5
/1
0
/1
3
) 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 

4
 S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt
. 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re
 

re
a
lis
ti
c
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to
r,
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

 

T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 Q

1
 

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt
. 

 

O
/S
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 2
5
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 

It
e
m
 4
 –
 C
C
T
V
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 

P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 C

C
T
V
 

C
o
d
e
 o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

C
C
T
V
 a
n
d
 L
if
e
lin

e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le
. 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 79



- 
2
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
4
th
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 

re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 C

o
d
e
 

o
f 
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
t.
 

/M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

a
n
d
 a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 

O
&
S
 W

o
rk
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

It
e
m
 6
 –
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 

p
a
p
e
r 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

G
ra
n
ts
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

 (
c
) 
 E
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 

e
a
rm

a
rk
e
d
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
p
a
re
 r
o
o
m
 

s
u
b
s
id
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
  

T
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

It
e
m
 8
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 

3
 S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

(a
) 
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
a
y
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
e
q
u
a
te
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
 

(b
) 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
in
g
s
 a
s
 

T
.A
. 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 J
u
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

A
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p
o
rt
 

 

 

O
/S
 f
ro
m
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 1
7
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt
 w

h
ic
h
 d
e
ta
ils
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 J
u
ly
 –
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

a
) 
T
h
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 

a
n
y
 c
o
s
t 
fo
r 
b
e
d
 

a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
fa
s
t 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 i
te
m
 i
n
 

fu
tu
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 

   D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

  

   T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

R
e
p
o
rt
. 

  

        

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 W
ri
te
 O
ff
 o
f 

D
e
b
ts
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 

2
 W

ri
te
 O

ff
 o
f 
D
e
b
ts
 R

e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 J
u
ly
 –
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
: 

a
) 
In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
w
ri
te
 o
ff
 

  D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

  T
o
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 

 

Page 80



- 
3
 -
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
: 
B
R
O
M
S
G
R
O
V
E
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 B
O
A
R
D
 1
4
th
 O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 2
0
1
3
 

o
f 
S
u
n
d
ry
 D

e
b
to
rs
, 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

d
e
b
to
rs
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 

re
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

b
) 
In
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
d
 

d
e
b
t 
p
ro
fi
le
, 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 

d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 

y
e
a
rs
. 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

      D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

in
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 

R
e
p
o
rt
. 

      A
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 L
E

A
D

E
R

’S
 

 

W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 

 
1

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
3
 T

O
 3

1
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
0

1
4

 

 

(p
u

b
li

s
h

e
d

 a
s

 a
t 

1
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
 

 
T

h
is

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

in
g
 f
o
u
r 

m
o

n
th

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
 

(N
B

: 
 T

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

c
c
a

s
io

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
 m

a
y
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
 f
in

a
l 
d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
 E

.g
. 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 a
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e
t.

) 
 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t’
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 l
is

te
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
ia

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 
a

tt
e
n

d
, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
ly

 b
e

 s
o
m

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l,
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lly
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
..

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
a

lle
d

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 M
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 m
e

d
ia

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o

 l
e

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

h
e

n
 s

u
c
h

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 i
s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 
If
 a

n
 i
te

m
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 c
o
n

ta
in

 e
x
e

m
p

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

e
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 Y
o
u

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 u
s
 i
f 
y
o

u
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

a
n
 i
te

m
 o

r 
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 l
is

te
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 o
p
e

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 83



  

 
T

h
e

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 g

iv
e

s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 k

e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

a
b

in
e

t,
 o

r 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n

c
il,

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 f

o
u

r 
m

o
n
th

s
. 

 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a

re
 t
h

o
s
e

 e
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

: 
 (i
) 

re
s
u

lt
 
in

 
th

e
 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
c
u

rr
in

g
 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

fo
re

g
o

in
g
 
in

c
o

m
e

 
o

r 
th

e
 
m

a
k
in

g
 
o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 
in

 
e

x
c
e

s
s
 
o

f 
£
5

0
,0

0
0

 
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 
a

re
 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
h

a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a

rd
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 b

u
d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

la
te

s
; 

o
r 

 (i
i)

 
b

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
it
s
 e

ff
e

c
t 
o

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g
 o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 t

w
o

 o
r 

m
o

re
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
is

tr
ic

t;
  

 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

1
. 

A
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i

n
 a

n
y
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

f 
£
5

0
,0

0
0
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

r 
s
a

v
in

g
 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n

. 
  

 
2

. 
A

 v
ir
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
n

y
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 £

5
0

,0
0

0
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
t 

is
 w

it
h

in
 a

n
y
 v

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

lim
it
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il;

 
 

3
. 

A
n

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 d
is

p
o

s
e

 o
f 

a
n

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
s
e

t 
w

it
h

 a
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
5

0
,0

0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r;

 
 4

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
to

 c
e

a
s
e
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 (

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

f 
n

o
t 
m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 6

 m
o
n

th
s
).

 
 5

. 
A

n
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a

te
 f
o

r 
o

r 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
n

y
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 T

h
e

 W
o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o

n
 f

re
e

 o
f 

c
h
a

rg
e

 a
t 

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o

u
s
e

, 
B

u
rc

o
t 

L
a

n
e

, 
B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

, 
B

6
0

 1
A

A
 f

ro
m

 9
a
m

 t
o

 5
p

m
  

M
o

n
d

a
y
s
 t

o
 F

ri
d

a
y
s
; 

o
r 

o
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

-s
it
e

 w
w

w
.b

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 If
 y

o
u

 w
is

h
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 y
o
u

 a
re

 e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
 t

o
u

c
h

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

 a
u
th

o
r 

a
s
 s

o
o
n

 a
s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

. 
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

  
A

lt
e

rn
a
ti
v
e

ly
, 

y
o

u
 m

a
y
 w

ri
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
L
e

g
a

l,
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
e
, 

B
u

rc
o

t 
L
a

n
e
, 
B

ro
m

s
g
ro

v
e

, 
B

6
0

 1
A

A
 o

r 
e

-m
a

il:
 d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
@

b
ro

m
s
g
ro

v
e

a
n

d
re

d
d

it
c
h

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 T
h
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t’
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 h
e

ld
 e

v
e

ry
 f

o
u

r 
w

e
e
k
s
 a

t 
6

p
m

 o
n

 W
e
d
n

e
s
d
a

y
 e

v
e

n
in

g
s
 a

t 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

H
o

u
s
e

. 
 T

h
e

y
 a

re
 o

p
e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
, 

e
x
c
e

p
t 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n
ti
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 w

is
h

 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

m
a
tt

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 a

d
v
is

a
b

le
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
a
m

 o
n

 (
0

1
5

2
7

 8
8
1

4
0
9

 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 s

u
re

 i
t 

is
 g

o
in

g
 a

h
e

a
d

 a
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
 q

u
e

ri
e

s
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 h
a

p
p

y
 

to
 a

d
v
is

e
 y

o
u

. 

Page 84



  T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e

e
ts

 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 C
a

le
n
d

a
r 

o
f 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

 M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

 a
t 

6
p

m
. 

 C
A
B
IN
E
T
 M
E
M
B
E
R
S
H
IP
  

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

R
. 

H
o

lli
n

g
w

o
rt

h
 

L
e

a
d

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
F

in
a
n

c
e

, 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d
 E

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
rs

. 
M

. 
A

. 
S

h
e

rr
e

y
 

D
e

p
u

ty
 L

e
a
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
. 

J
. 

A
. 
W

e
b

b
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

L
e

is
u
re

, 
C

u
lt
u

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
r.

 D
. 
W

. 
P

. 
B

o
o

th
 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 I

C
T

) 
w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 
C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r 

C
. 

B
. 
T

a
y
lo

r 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
. 

A
. 
B

u
lli

v
a

n
t 

P
o

rt
fo

lio
 

H
o

ld
e

r 
fo

r 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

, 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

L
e

g
a
l,
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
, 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 H
u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

   Page 85



   

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
lu
d
in
g
 W

h
e
th
e
r 
it
 i
s
 a
 K
e
y
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 T
a
k
e
r 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 

E
x
e
m
p
t 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

D
a
te
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 
/ 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 P
a
p
e
rs
 L
is
t 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

in
g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

G
u

y
 R

e
v
a

n
s
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
2

9
2
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 P

o
lic

y
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
r 

L
o

c
a

lis
m

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
4

 D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 Q

2
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 )

 –
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
a

m
 M

o
rg

a
n

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
7

9
0
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 G

ra
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
  

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

D
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

O
w

n
e

d
 

A
s
s
e

ts
 a

t 
H

a
n
o

v
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

/G
e
o

rg
e

 H
o

u
s
e

 -
 U

p
d

a
te

 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
 

(t
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 
C

o
u

n
c
il)

 

4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
( 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

, 
R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
 a

n
d

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 S

a
v
o

ry
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

8
1
 

D
o

d
fo

rd
, 
H

a
g
le

y
 a

n
d

 B
e

o
le

y
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 A
p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 
a

n
d

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 -

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

8
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

M
ik

e
 D

u
n

p
h

y
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 

 0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
3

2
5
 

Page 86



  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
lu
d
in
g
 W

h
e
th
e
r 
it
 i
s
 a
 K
e
y
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 T
a
k
e
r 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 

E
x
e
m
p
t 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

D
a
te
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 
/ 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 P
a
p
e
rs
 L
is
t 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 
2

0
1
4

/1
5
 –

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 U
p
d

a
te

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
8

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
6

7
3
 

F
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
h
a

rg
e

s
 2

0
1
4

/1
5
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

5
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

 1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
6

7
3
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

 
2

0
1
4

/1
5
 –

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

  
C

a
b

in
e

t 
 

 
(R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 b
e

 
m

a
d

e
 t

o
 C

o
u
n

c
il)

 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

J
a

y
n

e
 P

ic
k
e

ri
n

g
, 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
(F

in
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
) 

–
 S

1
5

1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
6

7
3
 

A
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 T
e

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 –

 F
u

tu
re

 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 W
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 
T

e
le

c
a

re
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
 

5
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
n

g
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

J
u

d
it
h

 W
ill

is
, 

A
c
ti
n

g
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

0
1

5
2

7
 6

4
2
5

2
 e

x
t 

3
3

4
8
 

D
o

d
fo

rd
, 
H

a
g
le

y
 a

n
d

 B
e

o
le

y
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 A
p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 
a

n
d

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 -

 
A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 R

e
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n
 

M
ik

e
 D

u
n

p
h

y
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
3

2
5
 

Page 87



  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

In
c
lu
d
in
g
 W

h
e
th
e
r 
it
 i
s
 a
 K
e
y
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
  

D
e
c
is
io
n
 T
a
k
e
r 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 

E
x
e
m
p
t 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 (
if
 

a
n
y
) 

D
a
te
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 
/ 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 P
a
p
e
rs
 L
is
t 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

u
ra

l 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

“E
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 S

it
e

” 
p

o
lic

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
 A

p
ri
l 
 2

0
1

4
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
e

p
u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

D
e

re
k
 A

lle
n

/A
m

a
n

d
a

 G
le

n
n

ie
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

0
1

5
2

7
 8

8
1
2

6
9
 

 Page 88



 

  1  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

2013-14 
 

All meetings commence at 6.00 p.m. in the Committee Room unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
This Work Programme consists of two sections: Items for future meetings 
(including updates) and Task Group Reviews. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
(a) To consider and agree the work programme and update it accordingly.  
 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

 
Other Information 

18th November 
2013 

Update report on the North 
Worcestershire Community Safety 
Partnership 

 

Quarters 1 & 2 Summary of 
Environmental Enforcement Action 
Report 

 

WRS Joint Scrutiny Exercise – Verbal 
Update 

 

Planning Policy Task Group – 12 month 
Review 

 

Cabinet Response to Air Quality Task 
Group Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

16th December 
2013 

Quarter 2 Finance Monitoring Report  

Quarter 1 & 2 Write Off of Debts Report  

Quarter 1 & 2 Sickness Absence 
Performance & Health Report 

 

Making Experiences Count Quarter 2 
Report 

 

Car Parking Review - Discussion  

WRS Joint Scrutiny – Verbal Update  

Cabinet Work Programme  

Agenda Item 13

Page 89



 

  2  

 
Date of Meeting 
 

 
Subject 
 

 
Other Information 

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

20th January 2014 Quarter 3 Summary of Environmental 
Enforcement Action Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

24th February 2014 Quarter 3 Sickness Absence 
Performance & Health Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme  

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

24th March 2014 WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Quarter 3 Finance Monitoring Report  

Quarter 3 Write Off of Debts Report  

Making Experiences Count Quarter 3 
Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

Action List  

Work Programme   

14th April 2014  Quarter 4 Summary of Environmental 
Enforcement Action Report 

 

Cabinet Work Programme   

WCC Health Overview & Scrutiny Board 
– Verbal Update 

 

Action List  

Work Programme   

 

Page 90



 

  3  

 
Scrutiny of Crime & Disorder Partnership Meeting Dates 
 
18th November 2013 
 
Provisional Informal Budget Briefings 5.30 p.m. (Private) 
 
2nd December 2013 
7th January 2014 
 
Reports not allocated 
 
Update on Flooding within the District 
Presentation on the Staff Survey Results 
Annual Review of Call In 
Countywide Sustainable Community Strategy – this is a ten year strategy and not 
due to be reviewed until 2014  
 
Topics to be considered (as recommended by Task Groups) 
 
1. Provision of services available to disaffected young people and those not in 

education, employment or training within the District. 
2. Review into CO2 Emissions in the District. 
 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY TASK GROUP/INQUIRY REVIEWS 2013-14 
 

 
Task Group 

 
Date of Review 

 

Planning Policy Task Group 
 

September 2013 

Youth Provision Task Group September 2014 

Air Quality Task Group October 2014 

 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 14th October 2013
	4 Update on North Worcestershire Community Safety Partnership
	20120925 - NWCSPTermsofRef FINAL
	20130816NWCSPPlanFinal

	5 Quarters 1 and 2 Summary of Environmental Enforcement Action Report
	6 Planning Policy Task Group 12 Month Review of Recommendations
	7 Cabinet Response to the Air Quality Task Group Report
	8 Scrutiny Topic Proposal - Ground Maintenance Work Carried out for BDHT
	20131025 Ground Maintenance BDHT

	9 Joint WRS Scrutiny Task Group Update
	11 Action List
	12 Cabinet Work Programme
	13 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme

